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          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Good morning.

          3  Today the Public Safety Committee is going to be

          4  conducting its second oversight hearing on the E-911

          5  system since the downing on January 31st, 1999.

          6                 In 1991, a study of the City's 911

          7  system was released which was commissioned by the

          8  Police Department and looked at ways of improving

          9  the 911 system. As a result, Enhanced 911 was

         10  received and subsequently funded by 35 cents

         11  telephone surcharge imposed by the Council.

         12                 E-911 was to be a comprehensive

         13  emergency response system which was to include a

         14  state-of-the-art public service answering center, a

         15  back-up system to protect against a disastrous

         16  system failure, an automatic number and location

         17  identification component, computer-aided dispatch,

         18  mobile digital terminals, portable data terminals

         19  and the incorporation of the Fire Department and

         20  Emergency Medical Systems.

         21                 At present PSAC II, computer-aided

         22  dispatch, the portable data terminals and the

         23  incorporation of the Fire Department EMS haven't

         24  been completed, or in some instances begun at all.

         25                 This is the second oversight hearing

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            5

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  since the system crashed on January 31st, 1999. Our

          3  first was on February 17th. Since then the system

          4  has been plagued by problems, most notably minor

          5  delays reported on April 28th, May 4th and May 10th.

          6                 Although, it appears that these

          7  delays aren't directly related to the problem that

          8  caused the crash on January 31st, they do raise

          9  serious questions and concerns about the system's

         10  status.

         11                 Our Committee will hear today from

         12  Commissioner Howard Safir, Bell Atlantic, emergency

         13  dispatch operators and union representatives. We

         14  will ask questions about the system and follow-up --

         15  and we will follow up with respect to what we were

         16  told and/or promised back in February of this year.

         17                 The Committee is interested in

         18  whether the Police Department has implemented the

         19  various changes that Commissioner Safir said would

         20  be made in his testimony on February 17th. We will

         21  ask if the second back-up system at PSAC II has been

         22  wired -- at the Public Service Answering Center has

         23  been wired, whether table exercises simulating an

         24  emergency have been formulated, whether the phones

         25  at police headquarters have been made compatible
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          2  with those at the Public Service Answering Center,

          3  and whether there are enough emergency operators to

          4  staff the E-911 system, and whether 911 is enhanced

          5  really without computer-aided dispatch and the PSAC

          6  II.

          7                 In addition, we would like to know

          8  what the timetable is for getting PSAC II and CAD

          9  operational. At the February 17th hearing,

         10  Commissioner Safir said that PSAC II would be ready

         11  in two years, which would be February of 2001, is

         12  that still the date that PSAC II will be ready? We

         13  would like to know.

         14                 The Committee will also require as to

         15  Bell Atlantic's role and whether Bell Atlantic has

         16  ascertained the source of the recent delays. We need

         17  to know what we can do to make E-911 reach its

         18  potential as the most advanced, most state of the

         19  art system of its time anywhere in the United

         20  States. The enlarged Police Department and the

         21  people of the City paying the surcharge, we believe

         22  deserve no less than the finest crime fighting

         23  technology available.

         24                 In December of 1992, I suggested that

         25  the Dinkins Administration should appoint an E-911
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          2  czar. In fact, that was suggested in connection with

          3  our approving this by one of the professors who

          4  offered testimony at that time.

          5                 Given the recent problems, perhaps an

          6  E-911 czar is still necessary.

          7                 In addition, we are releasing today a

          8  staff report entitled Only Halfway There, An

          9  Evaluation of the City's Enhanced 911 system. This

         10  report gives a concise rendition of where the system

         11  stands today, compared to where it should be.

         12                 Based on the original representations

         13  given to the Council in 1991, and it offers a number

         14  of recommendations, and something that we have been

         15  working on since the Summer of 1998.

         16                 This hearing was originally scheduled

         17  in May following the downings that I referred to in

         18  April and May, it was scheduled for June 16th, the

         19  Commissioner went to Israel and then for June 29th,

         20  and then it was switched by a day and we had the

         21  meeting I think on June 30th scheduled and you were

         22  at the Colonial Farm House in Queens, we are glad

         23  that you are here today and we look forward to

         24  moving ahead with these questions on E-911 system.

         25                 Would you like to begin with the
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          2  prepared testimony?

          3                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: I would.

          4  Good morning, Chairman, members of the Council. I am

          5  pleased to be here today to update the Council on

          6  the progress of the E-911 project.

          7                 I wish to take a few minutes to

          8  clarify a misconception about the E-911 project. The

          9  Council has indicated in the past that numerous cost

         10  overruns and changes have been made to the contract,

         11  including the elimination of portable data terminals

         12  as a contract component. This is not the case.

         13  Portable data terminals were never a component of

         14  the contract. The two change orders have been

         15  registered. One for 1.9 --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: What we meant on

         17  that was that when we got the first presentation

         18  from Lee Brown in August of 1991, portable data

         19  terminals were a component of that project.

         20                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: But never

         21  a component of the contract, and I would request --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Never a

         23  component of the contract --

         24                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: I would

         25  request, Mr. Chairman, that you let me complete my
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          2  statement. There were many things that I could have

          3  interrupted during yours, out of courtesy I did not.

          4  I would appreciate it if you would let me complete

          5  my statement and then I will answer any questions

          6  that you may have.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Since you were

          8  referring to what the Council had indicated, I

          9  thought it would be illuminating to point out

         10  exactly what we --

         11                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: There will

         12  be time at the completion of my statement within the

         13  constraints of, since we started late, that we can

         14  go on.

         15                 Two change orders have been

         16  registered, one for $1.9 million to allow New York

         17  City Sheriff's Office to purchase mobile digital

         18  terminals, and another for $2.2 million to expand

         19  work on the NYPD's radio system.

         20                 Additional increases are anticipated

         21  for the computer-aided dispatch system and for the

         22  construction of the second public safety answering

         23  center.

         24                 The original contract allocated $17.7

         25  million for CAD development and implementation. The
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          2  final amount will reflect adjustments including

          3  inflation.

          4                 The NYPD has expended approximately

          5  $103 million of the total contract amount through

          6  September 3rd, 1999. At the same time, according to

          7  the Mayor's Office of Management and Budget, the

          8  City has collected $124.1 million in revenues

          9  through Fiscal Year 1999. These collections have

         10  averaged $17.1 million annually.

         11                 As you know, the City has chosen 109

         12  Park Row as the cite for PSAC II. The Police

         13  Department has been working with the Department of

         14  Design and Construction on the design of PSAC II. We

         15  anticipate the design of PSAC II to begin in October

         16  with a two-year cycle from start of construction to

         17  full occupancy.

         18                 The additional cost for construction

         19  at 109 Park Row in Manhattan is estimated at $33

         20  million.

         21                 This increase above the contract

         22  amount of $12 million is due to construction costs

         23  associated with the new location, adjustment for

         24  inflation since 1994, and increased base

         25  requirements since our merger with the Transit and
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          2  Housing Police Departments.

          3                 The original $12 million cost

          4  estimate was based upon PSAC II being located in the

          5  prior communication center at One Police Plaza. That

          6  center was eliminated as a potential site for PSAC

          7  II based on the results of an engineering study done

          8  by the system's integrator.

          9                 The primary reasons for elimination

         10  were insufficient floor space and electrical

         11  capacity. We are proceeding with PSAC II in an

         12  anticipated two-year cycle from the start of the

         13  construction to full occupancy.

         14                 The request for proposal for a CAD

         15  system has been approved and released. It is

         16  anticipated that the contract will be awarded within

         17  six to eight months and there will be approximately

         18  a two-year development cycle to coincide with the

         19  PSAC II construction.

         20                 This year, through the month of

         21  August, the 911 system has experienced a five

         22  percent increase in calls, compared to the same

         23  period last year. And this summer, from May through

         24  August, we experienced a 9.6 percent increase in

         25  call volume over 1998.
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          2                 We were able to handle this increased

          3  volume due largely to the dedication and hard work

          4  of the staff.

          5                 For example, I recently attended the

          6  Annual Recognition Award ceremony, and I was pleased

          7  to recognize outstanding achievement by the staff of

          8  911, including 23 employees with perfect attendance

          9  records for periods ranging from one year to 16

         10  years.

         11                 There have been reports in the media

         12  that 911 operators are working in excessive amounts

         13  of overtime. On occasion, the combined impact of

         14  sick leave, emergency excusals, jury duty and

         15  excessive attrition may cause staffing to fall below

         16  the authorized levels of 913 employees.

         17                 Overtime is then used to compensate

         18  for these shortfalls. Overtime was used throughout

         19  the summer months to ensure timely response to calls

         20  for assistance. It should be noted that the majority

         21  of overtime was filled with volunteers.

         22                 In addition, the Department also

         23  re-analyzed the peak call patterns experienced this

         24  summer, and as a result, reinstituted a fourth tour

         25  overlapping the evening and late shifts. We also
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          2  immediately began the hiring process to replace

          3  attrition.

          4                 As you know, we screen our operators

          5  and dispatchers thoroughly before offering them

          6  positions with the NYPD. Drug tests and

          7  psychological screening tests are required.

          8                 A class of 27 call-takers was hired

          9  on June 7th and graduated on June 2nd, 1999. Another

         10  class of 67 was hired on July 30th and was scheduled

         11  to complete their eight weeks of training on

         12  September 24th.

         13                 The planned hiring of 40 call-takers

         14  at the end of September will bring us to our

         15  authorized staffing level.

         16                 With respect to the delays callers

         17  experienced when trying to reach 911 earlier this

         18  year, I am pleased to report that Bell Atlantic

         19  corrected the condition which caused the delays.

         20                 Beginning on March 1st, 1999, Bell

         21  Atlantic upgraded their network signaling system to

         22  signaling system seven, the latest standard in

         23  telephone signaling. SS7 supports the new digital

         24  signaling protocols and reduces the call delivery

         25  time. The delays occurred because of incompatibility
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          2  between the central switch configuration and the SS7

          3  upgrades. Once the conflict was identified, Bell

          4  Atlantic and Lucent Technologies worked quickly to

          5  resolve the problem.

          6                 A modification to the software was

          7  installed on May 7th and no delays have been

          8  reported since then. The Police Department continues

          9  to monitor and test daily to ensure the reliability

         10  of the network.

         11                 With respects to events that took

         12  place on January 31st, the Police Department

         13  continues to make procedural improvements to prevent

         14  the reoccurrence. We have updated both the disaster

         15  plan and the back-up plan. Procedures that were

         16  determined to be in need of improvement were revised

         17  to reflect the lessons learned. The Department and

         18  Bell Atlantic revised procedures to reduce the lead

         19  time required to redirect the 911 calls to One

         20  Police Plaza in the event of a problem at PSAC I.

         21                 Since June 1st, the communications

         22  section conducted three tabletop exercises and will

         23  continue to conduct these exercises on a monthly

         24  basis.

         25                 Bell Atlantic replaced all of the
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          2  batteries at PSAC I and tested the telephone system

          3  under conditions similar to those of January 31st.

          4  The telephone system remained operational and did

          5  not lose dial tone.

          6                 Bell Atlantic also revised their

          7  battery maintenance program to ensure reliability. A

          8  second telephone system is currently being installed

          9  at PSAC I to serve as a back-up to the primary ISDN

         10  telephone system. The system will function

         11  independently and will be hardwired separately from

         12  the primary system for redundancy.

         13                 The second telephone system will also

         14  include an automated call distribution module to

         15  allow the efficient distribution of calls in the

         16  event that the system is activated. This work is

         17  scheduled to be completed by the end of this month.

         18                 The generator that malfunctioned on

         19  January 31st has been repaired and successfully

         20  tested. The software that controls the generator has

         21  also been tested and certified. We are confident

         22  that the technical and procedural improvements

         23  instituted will prevent a similar recurrence.

         24                 Regarding the One Police Plaza

         25  back-up facility, the Department has also asked Bell
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          2  Atlantic to install the telephone system identical

          3  to the one currently used in PSAC I. Once the new

          4  telephone system is installed, activation does not

          5  require Bell Atlantic intervention to reroute the

          6  call traffic to the back-up. Activation is

          7  accomplished by operators signing on to the ACD. The

          8  work will commence in the fourth quarter of this

          9  year.

         10                 In the interim, Bell Atlantic and the

         11  NYPD have refined the emergency back-up procedure to

         12  reduce the transfer time required to redirect 911

         13  telephone calls.

         14                 Also, we have permanently reassigned

         15  to police headquarters the personnel who are capable

         16  of handling 911 calls should the back-up site need

         17  to be activated.

         18                 Since February, the Police Department

         19  has successfully completed five tests of the back-up

         20  site under various scenarios. The most recent test

         21  was conducted on Sunday, June 27th, 1999.

         22                 The Police Department activated the

         23  back-up site at One Police Plaza and Bell Atlantic

         24  redirected 911 traffic.

         25                 The Transit Bureau's communication
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          2  back-up site at 370 Jay Street was also staffed and

          3  tested with positive results.

          4                 After the test was completed, the 911

          5  traffic was restored to PSAC I without incident.

          6                 As I previously indicated, I have

          7  assigned a Deputy Inspector and five captains to the

          8  communications section to provide 24 hour coverage.

          9  These high-ranking officers are now an overall

         10  command of the center that will ensure quick and

         11  effective command presence at all times.

         12                 In conjunction with the relocation of

         13  the Fire Department's Data Center to 11 Metrotech,

         14  First New York Management has redesigned the

         15  electrical system to include an additional

         16  uninterruptible power system for the PSAC. The NYPD

         17  electrical systems will be connected to the

         18  additional UPS as a secondary source of battery

         19  back-up. The new configuration eliminates the

         20  possibility of even the temporary loss of power

         21  which occurred on January 31st.

         22                 For your convenience, I have attached

         23  a matrix showing the status of improvements and

         24  upgrades to the E-911 system.

         25                 I sincerely believe that the Public
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          2  Safety Answering Center is one of the finest in the

          3  nation and I invite the members of the City Council

          4  to visit the PSAC to inspect the operational

          5  conditions of the Center.

          6                 And I do want to correct one thing.

          7  You didn't say that there is no CAD system at 911.

          8  That is incorrect. Sprint is a computer-aided

          9  dispatch system --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: I said we didn't

         11  get the computer-aided dispatch system that was part

         12  of the original plan for the 911 system. That is

         13  what I said.

         14                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Well, just

         15  to make sure there is no confusion.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Okay, sure.

         17                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: We want to

         18  make sure that the public understands that there is

         19  computer-aided dispatch from 911 and what we are

         20  talking about is an improved computer-aided

         21  dispatch.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: What we are

         23  talking about is getting the computer aided dispatch

         24  system that we had first been told that we would be

         25  getting in 1991 and have been told repeated that we
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          2  would be getting thereafter.

          3                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: An

          4  improved CAD system. There is a CAD system.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Right. I didn't

          6  plan to start with this, but since you have

          7  mentioned it, we are, as I think you know, pursuant

          8  to legislation that Sal Albanese and I introduced

          9  and got passed in 1991, we get crime and progress

         10  data regularly, response time data from the

         11  Department, and in fact the data that we have now,

         12  which is voluminous, you know, millions of calls for

         13  1998, show that response time has gone up to 10.2

         14  minutes, which is 29.1 percent greater than 7.9

         15  minute response time in Fiscal Year -- in 1993, 29.1

         16  percent greater.

         17                 So, as a result, you know, we are

         18  very interested, and the public is very interested

         19  in getting the computer aided dispatch system, that

         20  we had been told repeatedly was going to be part of

         21  the Enhanced 911 system.

         22                 We were told that there was a

         23  litigation in progress the last time we met, has

         24  that been settled now?

         25                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: I will let
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          2  Commissioner Grasso respond to that because of his

          3  involvement in it.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Mr. Grasso,

          5  welcome.

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GRASSO: Good

          7  morning, Mr. Chairman.

          8                 I can tell you that we are continuing

          9  to work very amicably with EDS attorneys. There are

         10  a variety of complicated issues. I believe that we

         11  are very close to a complete settlement, but as of

         12  this morning we are not there. I would be precluded

         13  from getting into any more detail at this point

         14  because obviously to get into more detail would tend

         15  to impact on the intricate nature of the settlement

         16  discussions.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: We had thought

         18  that there was in fact a settlement -- well, not a

         19  settlement, but that the City was going to get a

         20  refund, a significant amount of money that it had

         21  paid to MCI system house; is that correct?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GRASSO: Damages

         23  are an issue, a significant issue, but beyond that I

         24  really could not get into more detail at this time,

         25  since I am personally involved in the settlement
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          2  negotiations. I will emphasize that we expect a

          3  resolution very soon. We are optimistic, based upon

          4  the negotiations that have taken place so far.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: In the statement

          6  today, didn't you say that you were putting out

          7  another bid for computer aided dispatch system?

          8                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: We have in

          9  fact issued an RFP for a new CAD.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: An RFP. Can we

         11  get a copy of that?

         12                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Sure.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Do we have the

         14  legal authority to issue, to enter into another

         15  agreement before this agreement is resolved, the old

         16  agreement with MCI System House?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GRASSO: We

         18  believe we do, because we have effectively

         19  terminated the CAD portion of the E-911 contract

         20  with DDS, and it was that termination of the

         21  contract that put it into the dispute process that

         22  has now directly led to the settlement negotiations,

         23  but it is our belief that we can take the measures

         24  that we have taken now to proceed with a new CAD.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: In your
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          2  statement on page three, you say and I quote, there

          3  will be approximately a two-year development cycle.

          4  In view of the fact that the current cycle has gone

          5  on for nine years and given us nothing tangible,

          6  what is the reason to believe that the whole CAD

          7  will be developed in two years?

          8                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Because we

          9  believe there are companies out there that have the

         10  capability of doing this and there are companies

         11  that have demonstrated in other venues successfully

         12  and that is our reason for believing that it will

         13  occur.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Well, that was

         15  the same thing with MCI originally, was it not? They

         16  have also instituted CAD elsewhere and were not able

         17  to do it here.

         18                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: I don't

         19  believe they had been successful in the kind of

         20  project we had in the past, and again, I believe

         21  without getting into the details, because we are in

         22  negotiations with them, I think there were

         23  significant problems relative to their assessment

         24  and their implementation and I don't see that with

         25  some of the companies that are out there now.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: With respect to

          3  the delays in April and May, you referred in the

          4  statement to what you believe was the problem, which

          5  I think you said was corrected as of May 7th; is

          6  that right?

          7                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: That's

          8  correct.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Was there not

         10  another problem on May 11th, May 10th with a delay

         11  of some period of time?

         12                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: We are

         13  certainly not aware of it.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: I thought there

         15  were --

         16                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: No. There

         17  is my staff and they are not aware of it.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: I take it you

         19  are confident that the -- well, could you elaborate

         20  a little bit more on just what the problem was and

         21  why you believe it has been corrected?

         22                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: I will ask

         23  Commissioner Baker to talk about the technical

         24  problems. As I understand it, again, not being an

         25  engineer, as I understand it there was an

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            24

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  incompatibility between a new system technology and

          3  software and that has been corrected, and I will ask

          4  Commissioner Baker to explain it to you technically.

          5                 But the bottom line is, yes, I am

          6  satisfied that it has been corrected, I also have

          7  ordered and we are continuing to test by the regular

          8  basis to make sure that there are no delays.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Could I just

         10  point out on the prior question, Mr. Fager from our

         11  Finance Division points out that there was an

         12  article in the New York Times on May 11th, it went

         13  in Newsday on May 11th, and the Daily News on May

         14  11th, all with respect to a stoppage in the

         15  operation of the system they said on May 10th. We

         16  will give you a copy of the Committee report.

         17                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: As you

         18  know, and as I have stated in the past when you have

         19  quoted newspapers, that is not the source that I

         20  rely on. I rely on my staff and my staff indicates

         21  they are unaware of it.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Well, perhaps

         23  that is even scarier than the first point.

         24                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Perhaps.

         25  Perhaps responsibility should be with people who
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          2  operate not with the media.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: No. But I mean,

          4  they were supposedly reporting the problems, if I

          5  remember correctly, of people who were trying to get

          6  through at the time in 911 and didn't get a dial

          7  tone. They were not getting through. They said --

          8                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: We have no

          9  record of it. I will be happy to have my staff

         10  research it, and if the people who are here are

         11  mistaken we will be happy to provide it to you, but

         12  at this point we have the principals here, we have

         13  no indication of it.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Somebody was

         15  going to explain in more detail the source of the

         16  problem, why you believe it has been rectified, the

         17  downings earlier this year?

         18                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Sure.

         19                 Commissioner Baker.

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BAKER: Mr.

         21  Leffler, the explanation was rather succinctly done

         22  by the Police Commissioner, however, it was an

         23  incompatibility on some software between a new

         24  signaling system that the Bell Atlantic is putting

         25  in and Lucent Technology software, they corrected
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          2  that, installed the correction and we haven't had a

          3  problem since.

          4                 As you know, the telephone company is

          5  here and they will probably be able to provide you

          6  with more succinct explanations.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: They will be our

          8  next witness. Okay.

          9                 And you test the system every day to

         10  make sure the system is up?

         11                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Yes, we

         12  do.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Okay.

         14                 With respect to the second Public

         15  Safety Answering Center, you said, if I remember

         16  your testimony, that it is being designed at this

         17  point?

         18                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: That's

         19  correct.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: And that you

         21  expect the construction will take two years from the

         22  beginning?

         23                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: That's

         24  correct.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: When do you
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          2  expect the design to be complete and the contract

          3  awarded?

          4                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Within the

          5  next six months.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: I see.

          7                 Okay, so some time then in Year 2002

          8  early on is when we should expect?

          9                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Right. We

         10  have been --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: And it will be

         12  the dual hot site that was originally discussed,

         13  with each getting 75 percent in case of an emergency

         14  and perhaps even more of the calls?

         15                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Each will

         16  be able to do 100 percent of the City.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Right.

         18                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: And we

         19  have been presented with designs from the Office of

         20  Design and Construction and we have picked out a

         21  design and now it has been put together to go out in

         22  Bids.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Right, okay.

         24  Some points that were raised at our hearing in

         25  February and points that you made with respect to
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          2  that, you said that "the Department determined that

          3  an additional back-up power system should be added

          4  to the Metrotech facility and that telephones be

          5  hardwired as an additional back-up measure". I take

          6  it the basic power problem, the generator that was

          7  being checked out that day, that has been checked,

          8  that is functioning fine.

          9                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: It has

         10  been checked, it has been tested. The hardwire

         11  system that I described at the original hearing will

         12  be completed by the end of this month which is

         13  another week. The Fire Department's UPS system will

         14  be connected to 911 which will give us two back-up

         15  uninterruptable power supplies, so that will be an

         16  additional redundancy. So those measures are either

         17  in progress or about to be completed.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Right. In a

         19  sense it was really a pitty that that happened. You

         20  know, a number of the power systems that we have

         21  already there were not functioning on that very one

         22  day of January 31st, but now we have so many

         23  alternate systems that one would expect we would

         24  never be without power like that.

         25                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: I would

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            29

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  suspect it.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Okay. You stated

          4  that the Department has advised all of the necessary

          5  parties, including Bell Atlantic not to perform

          6  maintenance or routine maintenance or repairs at 11

          7  Metrotech without first presenting their plan to

          8  your staff for review and approval; is there a new

          9  protocol in place with respect to this?

         10                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Yes, there

         11  is. In fact, no test takes place without my

         12  approval.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Right. Because

         14  that was also a problem there on January 31st?

         15                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: That's

         16  correct.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: So that also

         18  should be eliminated with respect to the future.

         19                 How often has routine maintenance

         20  been performed since January 31st?

         21                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Monthly.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Monthly, okay.

         23                 You stated that the Department is

         24  continuing to test and upgrade headquarters

         25  equipment and is installing training simulators at
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          2  Metrotech to replace the back-up site equipment.

          3  What kind of testing and upgrading were you

          4  referring to?

          5                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: I will let

          6  Commissioner Baker respond to that.

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BAKER: The

          8  equipment at the back-up site was, as you know, the

          9  older equipment, and what we have done is we have

         10  had Bell Atlantic survey the equipment to match the

         11  equipment at 11 Metrotech and they are in the

         12  process of accelerating that now.

         13                 We use the back-up site as the

         14  training site for the operators of 11 Metrotech

         15  during normal training days and it has proved

         16  successful so far.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Okay, and you

         18  say the system at Police Plaza, that used to be the

         19  operational system, and is now the back-up system,

         20  has been made compatible with Public Service

         21  Answering Center?

         22                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: That's

         23  correct.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: It doesn't have

         25  to be a special switchover in case of power loss or
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          2  some downing at Metrotech?

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BAKER: Once the

          4  phone equipment is installed, they will be able to

          5  sign into the automated call distribution system.

          6  The calls will be automatically routed over.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: That is not the

          8  case yet?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BAKER: Not the

         10  case yet. They just designed that and we have

         11  authorized the installation.

         12                 Currently, Mr. Leffler, we do have to

         13  transfer the calls over with Bell Atlantic doing the

         14  transfer.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Right. And that

         16  is part of the problem which we want to eliminate by

         17  having --

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BAKER: That is

         19  part of the problem which we have identified and

         20  have designed the elimination of the new system.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: So, when do you

         22  think the new change will go into effect?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BAKER: It will be

         24  by the end of December.

         25                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: And I
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          2  should point out that part of the redundancy that we

          3  have installed, would still, even if we had beyond

          4  the additional power redundancies that we have put

          5  in, if we had a power failure, we would still, which

          6  will be completed by the end of this week, or next

          7  week, the end of the month, we still would have the

          8  hardwired system which would allow the operators to

          9  continue to stay at their consuls and respond to 911

         10  calls, therefore not requiring a move to One Police

         11  Plaza.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Right. And that

         13  is dependent on?

         14                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: That is

         15  not dependent on the power supply, that is dependent

         16  on the phones continuing to operate.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Is that in

         18  effect now?

         19                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: It will be

         20  in effect by the 30th.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Okay.

         22                 That will enable calls to be taken

         23  in; is that right?

         24                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: That will

         25  be for calls to come in, yes.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: But how to get

          3  calls out in that system, if the power goes down?

          4                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: What?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER:  If the power

          6  goes down, you have a hard-wired system.

          7                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Right, the

          8  hard-wired -- we dispatch by radio, which will be

          9  unaffected by that site of the house. Dispatch was

         10  not affected when we had our power outtage there.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: With respect to

         12  staffing, you referred in your opening statement to

         13  three sets of hires of additional civilian

         14  employees, we added money in the budget for an

         15  additional hundred operators, the Council did, with

         16  the consent of the Mayor from the Executive Budget,

         17  so all of them will be on board by the end of this

         18  month?

         19                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: That's

         20  correct.

         21                 The last group of 40 will be hired in

         22  the next week or so.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Is that

         24  adequate, to properly staff and operate the Public

         25  Service Answering Center?
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          2                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: We believe

          3  it is.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: At the hearing

          5  that we had in February, representatives of DC 37

          6  said that the telephone system at the Public Service

          7  Answering Center breaks down frequently resulting in

          8  callers having to wait up to 20 minutes to get an

          9  operator; how often does the system break down?

         10                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Very

         11  rarely. Ninety-five percent of the calls are

         12  answered within 30 seconds.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: So what is your

         14  response?

         15                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: The

         16  response is that is incorrect, it does not break

         17  down often, and our system operates very

         18  effectively.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Okay. We had

         20  some discussion last time with respect to the

         21  dispatching of personnel to One Police Plaza when

         22  there was an outtage at Metrotech on January 31st,

         23  which you really don't believe will ever occur again

         24  because of the redundancies that we have just gone

         25  through.
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          2                 At that time it was a certain amount

          3  of what was characterized I think fairly as

          4  troubleshooting, the period of delay.  If there is

          5  an outtage, does police procedures state the

          6  Department should delay dispatching personnel to One

          7  Police Plaza for a given period of time to allow for

          8  that troubleshooting.

          9                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: As I

         10  stated in my statement, we have now assigned people

         11  to One Police Plaza who will be there to instantly,

         12  in the unlikely event that we would have the

         13  switchover, to respond, to begin answering

         14  dispatchers --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: But are they

         16  sufficient in number? I mean, I thought --

         17                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: No. And

         18  then as a back-up to that, we have had a number of

         19  drills on how to get people quickly over from

         20  Metrotech to --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Right. So the

         22  people will be, in that unlikely eventuality, which

         23  did happen on January 31st, there would be people

         24  moved from Metrotech at One Police Plaza.

         25                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Yes. And
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          2  we have done a number of drills on how to do that.

          3  As I also said in my statement, we have increased

          4  supervision so that there is at least a captain on

          5  board on every shift who would be responsible for

          6  implementing that.

          7                 And we have also staged buses at 911

          8  Metrotech so that we wouldn't have a delay in having

          9  to dispatch transportation to 911 to get people over

         10  to Metrotech, to One Police Plaza.

         11                 And again, that all against the

         12  background that we would now have to have four

         13  systems or five systems go down in order for that to

         14  occur.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Right. But just

         16  focusing on that, since it did happen last time,

         17  what is the period of troubleshooting that in those

         18  circumstances you would provide for?

         19                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: We would

         20  dispatch instantly.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Instantly.

         22                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Right. And

         23  we would continue to troubleshoot while the people

         24  were going to One Police Plaza.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Okay. And that
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          2  is in the protocol of the like --

          3                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: That is

          4  correct.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: -- So that that

          6  is going to be the new procedure.

          7                 Okay. What are the qualifications of

          8  the Captain? I take it that there are civilian

          9  employees who do this for the Fire Department; is

         10  that correct?

         11                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: That is

         12  correct.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: But for the

         14  Police Department you have uniform?

         15                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: That is

         16  correct. And we also have civilian employees

         17  supervising as well.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: What are the

         19  qualifications of the individuals who are assigned

         20  to this?

         21                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: That they

         22  have operational command capacity and have the

         23  ability to supervise large numbers of people and to

         24  respond to emergencies.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: And understand
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          2  how the system --

          3                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: And

          4  understand how the system works, of course.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: And there are

          6  special protocols that the civilian employees have

          7  been instructed in in case of a disaster?

          8                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: I will let

          9  Commissioner Baker answer that, but we do have

         10  protocols and we do have a disaster plan, a

         11  relocation plan, but I will let him address it.

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BAKER: As you

         13  recall from our previous meetings with you, that was

         14  a topic that you wanted to look into. So, we did

         15  look into that and actually provided your office

         16  with copies of protocols.

         17                 What we did was we basically

         18  consolidated a bunch of memorandum of operations

         19  into the centralized protocol, and have instructed

         20  our supervisors in that protocol.

         21                 So we took advantage of that

         22  situation and created a directive for everyone to

         23  follow in a unified manner.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Is that an

         25  updated protocol?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BAKER: Well,

          3  obviously some of the items and some of the

          4  memoranda were updated, as we created the new

          5  directive. But generally speaking, most of the

          6  directives stood as written, simply had to be

          7  updated by location.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Isn't this the

          9  area where you had some that dated back to 1994?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BAKER: Oh,

         11  certainly. Yes.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: And wasn't that

         13  what the Comptroller's Office had audited and found,

         14  you know, were lacking in terms of disaster

         15  preparation?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BAKER: That was

         17  all updated, yes.

         18                 I don't --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Updated since

         20  the audit?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BAKER: Yes.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Updated since

         23  the audit, okay.

         24                 So, there is a new means for training

         25  for personnel in the case of a disaster how to
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          2  respond?

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BAKER:

          4  Absolutely.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: So many of the

          6  materials were from 1994, but did you also submit to

          7  us more recent materials?

          8                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Yes, we

          9  did. And in fact, you know, there is -- you keep

         10  saying 1994, but if something worked for 1994 and it

         11  still works, we continue to utilize it.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Well, you know,

         13  I think it is questionable how well it actually

         14  worked on January 31st, isn't it?

         15                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Again, if

         16  you listen to what Mr. Baker said, he said the

         17  components which continued to be relevant and

         18  operationally correct were included in the updated

         19  protocol, along with new procedures.

         20                 We have protocols in the Police

         21  Department that go back many years that were tried

         22  and true when they were first implemented and we

         23  continue to use them.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: I have some more

         25  questions, but I think members of the Committee
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          2  probably do too. From my left, they are Martin

          3  Golden, Walter McCaffrey, Stanley Michels, Victor

          4  Robles, Madeline Provenzano, Phil Reed.

          5                 Council Member Robles.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Thank you, Mr.

          7  Chairman. Before I do, let me just take an advantage

          8  and privilege and let me just say although I was not

          9  invited to the promotion, but I want to personally

         10  on behalf of my constituency that some were invited,

         11  since he was a Precinct Commander, Borough Commander

         12  before North Brooklyn became SATCOM, and today I

         13  must tell you that it is good to see my dear friend

         14  who is now the Chief of Department, and since I

         15  could not say it on your promotion day, let me say

         16  that we are rejoicing in Brooklyn because they

         17  snatch good people from North Brooklyn and they

         18  become big people in the Police Department.

         19                 So, Commissioner, congratulations on

         20  your appointment, and asking Chief Dunn to become

         21  the Chief of Department. And hopefully, as friends

         22  you will invite me next time.

         23                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: So noted.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Thank you.

         25                 And, Commissioner, it is always good
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          2  to see you.

          3                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Good to

          4  see you.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: It is nice to

          6  have you before us again.

          7                 Let me perhaps ask a question,

          8  because I have been reading about the issue at hand.

          9  Let me make sure that at least my numbers are

         10  correct. Currently is it fair to say that there is

         11  about 850 personnel, civilians, working in the 911

         12  system?

         13                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: 913 is

         14  authorized, so you are probably close in the actual

         15  number that are on board.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: So you have

         17  913 and it is close around -- because what I need to

         18  know is, where I read, where I heard you say that

         19  there is an additional 100 personnel being hired --

         20                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: By the end

         21  of the month we will be up to our strength of 913.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Oh, so your

         23  number of strength is 913?

         24                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Right,

         25  that's correct.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: And that 913,

          3  once is all said and done, will also be the 100?

          4                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: That

          5  includes the increase.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Now, is it

          7  also fair to say that whatever is in place right

          8  now, close to 10 million calls a year come through

          9  that system.

         10                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: That's

         11  right.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Is the 913

         13  ratio a number that meets the demand of the 10

         14  million a year?

         15                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: We believe

         16  it is.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: And that is

         18  based upon your expert evaluation?

         19                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: That's

         20  correct.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: So that if

         22  someone wants you up at the number, the complaint of

         23  the following, one, people calling and not getting

         24  through, or people, you know, waiting, number one,

         25  that should cease?
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          2                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: That's

          3  correct. And as I said before, over 95 percent of

          4  our calls are answered within 30 seconds.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Second, the

          6  other issue, and where I now wear my hat as chairman

          7  of the Health Committee, because it does become a

          8  health issue because if someone was working, is

          9  asked to work beyond the norm, and is a human body

         10  and only so many hours in a day, then you get the

         11  stress of mentally, physically, and that is why I

         12  use it and it becomes a health issue, so I want to

         13  wear my hat. The concern about the overtime, the

         14  ordering to work overtime, even though they put in a

         15  full day, when you get to the 913 should that also

         16  alleviate and deal with the health problem?

         17                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: That

         18  should significantly improve that.

         19                 We also need to, which we have had

         20  discussions with the union about, and which the

         21  union has in fact agreed with us, we need to work on

         22  a number of programs to determine why 911 operators

         23  have about the highest percentage of sick leave of

         24  any unit in the Department.

         25                 We have, and it is interesting, we
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          2  have a very dedicated corps of 911 operators, some

          3  of who has I mentioned before haven't missed a day's

          4  work in 16 years. And we have another group that are

          5  constantly in the 13, 15, 16 percent sick leave

          6  category, and with the union we have to determine

          7  why that is.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Let me

          9  suggest, if I may respectfully, because while -- and

         10  I am happy that I am a member of this Committee,

         11  since I have come here to the Council, and we are

         12  dealing with it because it is Public Safety that the

         13  Police Department reports to, but the issue I am

         14  referring to is really a health-related issue, and

         15  my dilemma is that, and I understand that you meet

         16  with the unions and you try to resolve it, but may I

         17  respectfully suggest that whatever programs,

         18  whatever is agreed upon between you and the unions,

         19  but not only this Committee but the Committee on

         20  Health, my Committee, because one of the things that

         21  I want to do with this Committee, either jointly or

         22  singularly, is to follow up on the health issue. But

         23  my dilemma is that there are meetings between you

         24  and the union and I know nothing about it, and we

         25  only know about it when there is a crisis, and then
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          2  they pack the place and want to know what are we

          3  going to do. Well, since it was raised in this

          4  hearing, and since I repeat, and again, I want to

          5  make sure I am going in the right direction, you do

          6  agree that the stress -- that the sick, that there

          7  are areas that are really Health-related, not

          8  necessarily Public Safety?

          9                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: I think we

         10  have to determine whether or not that is the case. I

         11  think we have to determine whether or not the reason

         12  one-third of a platoon doesn't show up is because

         13  there was a cruise the night before for a function,

         14  or whether it is relative to some stress-related

         15  thing at Metrotech, and I am willing to look at all

         16  of the options.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Okay, fine.

         18                 So, may I ask then, and I say this

         19  respectfully to both the Chair of this Committee,

         20  the Council and myself, that whatever you and the

         21  union agreed or believe is a direction that you

         22  should go in especially to deal with the sick leave

         23  and the health conditions, you can share it with

         24  this Committee but also with my Committee so that we

         25  then, if the Public Safety Committee, because of
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          2  other priorities of public safety, then I am saying

          3  that the Health Committee is prepared to step in and

          4  even bring you in so we can deal with the

          5  health-related issues?

          6                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: We are

          7  certainly willing to discuss improving them with

          8  anybody.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Thank you very

         10  much, Commissioner. It is always good to see you.

         11                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Good to

         12  see you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Could I just

         14  make sure I understand this? We did, the Council

         15  amended the Mayor's Executive Budget this year and

         16  added funding for 100 additional employees who are

         17  911 operators, right?

         18                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Correct.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Now, what was

         20  the number that we were authorized to have in Fiscal

         21  Year '99?

         22                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: To clarify

         23  it, 62 of that 100 were 911 operators. The balance

         24  were radio mechanics.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Right, okay.
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          2  What was the authorized numbers of 911 operators in

          3  1999?

          4                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: 913 is --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: That is the

          6  authorized number.

          7                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Right,

          8  after the 52.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: What you are

         10  saying, your testimony I gather was that you

         11  brought, with these hirings you are bringing it up

         12  to the authorized level of Fiscal Year '99; is that

         13  not your testimony?

         14                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: That's

         15  correct.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: But did we not

         17  add funding for what you just said was --

         18                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: No, no.

         19  You are talking about FY 2000?

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Now we are into

         21  FY 2000.

         22                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: The

         23  authorized number is 913. Including this --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: For Fiscal Year

         25  2000?
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          2                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Right.

          3  Including the 62 that have been added.

          4                 We are currently on board at 893.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: I see. So, the

          6  authorized level you are saying in Fiscal Year --

          7                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: 200 is

          8  913.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: -- '99 was 63

         10  less than -- it was 850.

         11                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Sixty-two.

         12  Sixty-two less than 913, 851.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: It's 851.

         14                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Right.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: So what you are

         16  saying is you have done all of the hiring authorized

         17  in the Fiscal Year 2000 budget?

         18                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: We will

         19  have the last group on board by the end of the

         20  month.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: And the others

         22  were mechanics who do what, unrelated --

         23                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Well, they

         24  are related to keeping the radio system and the

         25  radio cars up and running.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Right.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: I think as you

          4  are aware, we have expanded the number of

          5  frequencies that we use for dispatch which has made

          6  the system much more efficient, but we need

          7  additional dispatchers and radio mechanics to do

          8  that.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Thank you.

         10                 Council Member Phil Reed.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Thank you, Mr.

         12  Chair.

         13                 Good morning, gentlemen.

         14                 Commissioner, in your testimony on

         15  page four, when you are talking about this issue

         16  about sick leave and staffing in this first

         17  paragraph, in the last sentence you say it should be

         18  noted that the majority of overtime was filled by

         19  volunteers, so that is people that are volunteering,

         20  they work at 911 and they are volunteering, or

         21  volunteers?

         22                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: No, people

         23  at 911 who volunteer to perform overtime.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: We were just

         25  wondering if there were actually people in the
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          2  community that volunteer to answer the telephones.

          3                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: No, no,

          4  no.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Okay.

          6                 And typically do you have a roster?

          7  It is funny, but it isn't funny on some levels. Do

          8  you have a roster of people that are typically

          9  volunteering? When you say volunteer, does that mean

         10  that at the time you say, okay, we call up and we

         11  say we need you to come in? What constitutes

         12  volunteering?

         13                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Let me

         14  have Commissioner Baker answer this, since he

         15  administers this.

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BAKER: Usually we

         17  know ahead of time the overtime that we will need

         18  probably by a few hours. The personnel working

         19  regular shifts are asked if they want to work

         20  overtime, at that point they volunteer to do so.

         21                 If we do not have enough people to

         22  work overtime, therefore we have to hold people

         23  over, mandatory overtime.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: So the requests

         25  that you make is of the people that are there that
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          2  are just about to complete their eight-hour shift,

          3  and you see if those people are willing to

          4  volunteer.

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BAKER: We ask

          6  those who want to work overtime, who are currently

          7  are working a regular shift, if they want to stay,

          8  that is correct.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: And if you don't

         10  end up with enough people then you may go back to

         11  those very same people and request mandatory?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BAKER: Well, we

         13  have a regular rotation of different shifts that

         14  rotate through the mandatory overtime scheme so that

         15  the window does hit the same people all the time.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: I am sorry, I

         17  really didn't understand that.

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BAKER: There are

         19  platoons of people that work in regular shifts, so

         20  like our Mondays we will hold Platoon A over and on

         21  Tuesday we will hold Platoon B over, so it doesn't

         22  have to be A every time.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: I am looking at

         24  something about the staff, the shift, so they are

         25  like 12 to 8 and 8 to 4 and 4 to --
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BAKER: Those are

          3  tours.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: That is the

          5  typical eight hours?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BAKER: That's

          7  correct.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: So then within,

          9  let's arbitrarily take this 12 to 8 one, within that

         10  you have platoons, and so within that group you

         11  would alternate the platoons that you ask to

         12  volunteer?

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BAKER: That's

         14  correct.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: So, if we ask

         16  some of those people that were in one of these

         17  shifts whether or not they volunteered or not to do

         18  this, what do you think their answer would be?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BAKER: It is kind

         20  of a hypothetical, I don't know that --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: So, if there is

         22  no volunteer at 3:00 in the afternoon, I am going to

         23  be told to do it at 6:00.

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BAKER: It depends

         25  if they are in the platoon that has to work the
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          2  overtime on a mandatory basis. So some would say yes

          3  and some would say no.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: We think some of

          5  this is going to be alleviated because of the full

          6  staffing that we are anticipating having?

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BAKER: Well, I

          8  think that, in combination with working on reducing

          9  the amount of sick time that these people do take,

         10  will alleviate quite a bit of this overtime. We have

         11  already alleviated a lot of it --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Commissioner,

         13  you were talking about the sick leave and you threw

         14  around a lot of numbers, you said, 10, 13, 16, was

         15  that percent of the total workforce? I understood

         16  there was a problem you recognize. I just didn't get

         17  the number.

         18                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: The

         19  average sick leave at Metrotech is 12 percent. That

         20  is the average.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Twelve percent

         22  of the work force is sick on a given day?

         23                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Every day.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: And the average

         25  in the Police Department?
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          2                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: About 2.6.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: 2.6?

          4                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Yes. The

          5  Department as a whole has the lowest sick ratio of

          6  any city agency.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Now, other than

          8  awards --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Twelve percent

         10  strikes me as being one of the highest.

         11                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Twelve

         12  percent just at Metrotech.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: I think he

         14  acknowledged that that is the highest than any

         15  department.

         16                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: That is

         17  what I said to begin with.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: I mean, even

         19  Sanitation workers who work outdoors during the

         20  winter, have nothing approaching 12 percent.

         21                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Yes, I

         22  think you are missing that the Department has 2.6,

         23  Metrotech --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: No, I got that

         25  it was just this unit.
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          2                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Yes, as I

          3  stated before, this unit, which is of great concern

          4  to me, which is why we are meeting with the union to

          5  look for resolution, is the highest of any unit in

          6  the Police Department.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: You also talked

          8  about awarding people for consistent attendance, one

          9  or at least one for over 16 years. Is there any

         10  other program that you have to reward people for

         11  attendance? I mean, I have to sort of laugh, you

         12  talk about volunteer, or mandatory volunteering and

         13  I was on a plane the other day trying to get back

         14  into town from Chicago and they wanted us to

         15  volunteer to get off the plane because they were

         16  overbooked, they were going to give me $200. Do you

         17  have any programs like that?

         18                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: No, we do

         19  not. We generally do not pay people not to go sick,

         20  that becomes an incentive to go sick, or becomes a

         21  disincentive.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: But is there any

         23  ideas or presently programs in place that at some

         24  point do reward people for not being?

         25                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Yes, we do
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          2  give awards for good attendance records and continue

          3  to do that.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Okay, within

          5  these three shifts, which of the shifts is the most

          6  active in terms of calls?

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BAKER: The 4 to

          8  12 shift, the swing shift.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Is there a

         10  particular number of people that you have in every

         11  given shift that you know are bi- or multilingual?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BAKER: Well, we

         13  have regularly assigned multilingual people on

         14  shifts.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Is there some

         16  mandate that at any given shift there is going to be

         17  ten percent of the work force that speaks Spanish or

         18  all of the variations that we have, or how do we

         19  handle that situation?

         20                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: We through

         21  AT&T have a translation line where an operator can

         22  basically connect the caller to the translation line

         23  and have somebody who speaks -- how many languages?

         24  Where there are operators who speak 43 languages,

         25  that will then become a three-way conversation so
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          2  that person can be talking to somebody who speaks

          3  that language.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: And this is 24

          5  hours a day.

          6                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR:

          7  Twenty-four hours a day.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: And lastly, Mr.

          9  Chair, I know that we have often times talked about,

         10  and, again, I am fairly new to this Committee, so I

         11  am not sure where we have been with this, but

         12  typically as a citizen I have been frustrated when I

         13  have had to call my precinct to talk about something

         14  that I don't think is an emergency, so I try to call

         15  the precinct and I can't get through, so therefore I

         16  have to call 911.

         17                 So, that obviously increases the

         18  numbers, and I am very conscious as a citizen and

         19  obviously as a Council member to try not to call 911

         20  arbitrarily but there are times that the only way

         21  you can report the problem is through that system.

         22                 Have we looked -- there was at some

         23  point some conversation about having a second less

         24  emergency -- that is not the greatest thing --

         25                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Yes, we do
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          2  have a central number.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: What are we

          4  doing with that situation?

          5                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: We do have

          6  a central number which is 374-5000 that the public

          7  can also call, which is manned 24 hours a day.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Wasn't there

          9  going to be a three-digit number that people could

         10  call that were not emergencies that --

         11                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: There has

         12  been a proposal to do that. At this point we are not

         13  in the process of doing that.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Thank you.

         15                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Council Member

         17  McCaffrey.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY:

         19  Commissioner, in all due deference, 374-5000 number,

         20  which I occasionally have to use to get someone in

         21  the building, when I don't have my directory, is

         22  still ringing at my desk when I left it for two days

         23  ago. I mean, I got to be honest with you, that is

         24  not an alternative, and the Department must look at

         25  some way to presently deal with that problem,
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          2  because unfortunately we are all finding that in our

          3  commands of late universally and it is an item that

          4  I hear around the borough and Queens, and so I would

          5  just ask as an aside to look at that separately.

          6                 Commissioner, the question that was

          7  raised last time concerning the equipment that was

          8  being viewed by the operators, the hand consoles, et

          9  cetera, was indicated to be in a very substantial

         10  state of disrepair, that there was broken consoles,

         11  handsets, that the frequency in which they were

         12  being replaced and maintained was not particularly

         13  good.

         14                 Now, in the testimony today that

         15  issue isn't addressed, perhaps the Commissioner can

         16  address what has been done specifically in that

         17  area, in that aspect?

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BAKER: I am

         19  assuming you are talking about 11 Metrotech?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: Yes.

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BAKER: And there

         22  were some drawers in some of the consoles that were

         23  broken and obviously equipment continues to break

         24  because they are used, and we have a repair program

         25  that repairs them. I think probably the complaint
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          2  was they weren't prepared quickly enough. And we

          3  have looked into that with the contractor and we are

          4  repairing them more quickly.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: Because at

          6  times I hear on the scanner, where I will end up

          7  hearing a 911 operator say that they cannot hear

          8  because of some problem with a piece of equipment

          9  they have got.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BAKER: Well we

         11  constantly replace and repair headphones. I mean,

         12  obviously with as many staff as we have that is a

         13  major repair item.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: Right. And

         15  you say that has been expanded in terms of that?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BAKER: Yes, it

         17  has.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY:

         19  Commissioner, one of the items that is raised in

         20  terms of the hiring is as we are now doing the

         21  hiring the question is, in a year from now where are

         22  we in terms of the number at that point?

         23                 What is the program the Department

         24  will have to continue to see to it that we backfill

         25  positions that become vacant, rather than have
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          2  suddenly now 40 spots vacant before we are

          3  additionally doing hiring on an ongoing basis?

          4                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Sure.

          5  Since we have a history on attrition, which has been

          6  pretty level, attrition has been somewhere around

          7  200 a year, so what we do is we put people in the

          8  pipeline and have them staged so that as attrition

          9  takes place we can hire them and put them in

         10  training.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: And that

         12  will end up giving us the sense that we will

         13  continue up at the authorized number or pretty

         14  close?

         15                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Yes, we

         16  should be, or close to.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: We have

         18  received numbers, and I don't know if staff has

         19  presented this material to the Commissioner.

         20                 I would ask if staff might give this

         21  to the Commissioner.

         22                 Commissioner, what we are looking for

         23  very much is what the numbers are of the individuals

         24  who are assigned to the three shifts Monday through

         25  Saturday, and not merely what the current numbers
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          2  are, but also what the historical numbers are. This

          3  is information which we received from various

          4  sources and I don't know whether or not you would

          5  have something obviously in your briefing materials

          6  there, that could indicate for example on, as

          7  Commissioner Baker has indicated on the 4 to 12

          8  shift which is the one with the greatest volume as

          9  to how many individuals we have on, for example, on

         10  an average Sunday, Monday, Tuesday, et cetera. Would

         11  you have that information?

         12                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: I don't

         13  have it with me. But having first seen this right

         14  now, what we can do is we can take this, we can,

         15  one, tell you whether it is accurate --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: Understood.

         17                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: And as

         18  well as, which I think is more relevant, the

         19  reasons, if in fact these numbers are correct, for

         20  the deficiency in staffing.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: Is that

         22  possible to have that within a week?

         23                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: I would

         24  think so.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: Okay.
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          2                 And lastly, one of the items that I

          3  think is extremely important is, in your

          4  deliberations with the union, one of the things we

          5  generally tend not to do in the City bureaucracy is

          6  to ask directly to our employees rather than to

          7  intermediaries, as good as the leadership is in a

          8  union, what their opinions are, that person who is

          9  there on an ongoing basis to have that opportunity

         10  to do the surveying. And so has the question is,

         11  what has the Department done by way of surveys

         12  directed to individuals? Because the issue out there

         13  in terms of the enforced overtime is I don't think

         14  you have anything else in the Department, save the

         15  occasional major emergency in which you are forcing

         16  uniformed officers to work overtime, and at the same

         17  rate as you are doing that as with 911 operators,

         18  there is nothing out there. We don't have, thank

         19  God, the type of disasters that you have got to go

         20  back and do that with the same type of rapidity, so

         21  the question is how is it that you are opening that

         22  direct line of contact, as well as the important

         23  dialogue that you have with the union?

         24                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: I will let

         25  Commissioner Baker respond to the 911 issue. But I
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          2  will tell you that we routinely hold uniformed

          3  personnel --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: I don't

          5  deny that, but not at the same level in terms of

          6  911, we all agree with that. If we were doing that

          7  we would be in trouble --

          8                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: True.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: Because you

         10  would probably have disaster after disaster --

         11                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: That is

         12  true. But perhaps part of that, and again this comes

         13  back to the sick leave issue, is the level of sick

         14  leave among uniformed personnel is very, very low,

         15  five times lower than 911.

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BAKER: Council

         17  Member McCaffrey, with reference to how we meet with

         18  and get opinions from and interact with our

         19  employees, I have specifically met with all levels

         20  of employees within my command, which includes the

         21  Communications Division as well as MISD, I meet with

         22  them on a quarterly basis in open sessions, I invite

         23  them to come and talk to me on Open Doors days, Open

         24  Doors sessions, and if there is an issue that they

         25  want to talk about, that they feel a need to, they
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          2  can pick up the phone and call my private direct

          3  number, they all have that.

          4                 So, we extensively go out on a

          5  routine regular basis and interact with all of the

          6  employees at all levels to get their input into what

          7  is going on and what their problems are --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: And one of

          9  the items also in the past, as we have also done

         10  surveys where someone does not have to come in and

         11  identify themselves, for fear that maybe they are

         12  getting jammed up or complaining about a supervisor

         13  or something of that nature, and they then are

         14  reluctant to come forward.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BAKER: Yes,

         16  actually I have instituted a, what I call my "super

         17  secret fax number", they can anonymously put

         18  anything into a fax machine at their end, it goes

         19  directly to my computer.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: And the

         21  folks are all aware of that?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BAKER: They are

         23  all aware of it, and they use it on a continual

         24  basis.

         25                 You don't have to sign your name to
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          2  anything, you can just tell me what the information

          3  is, and it doesn't necessarily come back to you. I

          4  maintain a log of all of those communications and we

          5  do look into every one of them, and those that do

          6  identify themselves are responded back to with the

          7  results of their investigation.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: And lastly,

          9  Commissioner, one of the items I ask is, in the

         10  consideration that we have in terms of, and it is

         11  beyond your purview because you don't set the salary

         12  levels, but the question here is how much of a

         13  factor is that, I ask that perhaps rhetorically, but

         14  I think that is one of the items where we put these

         15  people under tremendous pressure.

         16                 I mean, I listen out there to those

         17  officers and their lifeline is that 911 operator,

         18  and while it may end up being at times monotonous

         19  and unexciting, but in the event of a 1013 being

         20  called, I hear that reflected and that intention in

         21  that 911 operator, the same way as I hear it of the

         22  MOS who is responding. And so those are

         23  circumstances out there. You know, we tend not to

         24  treat people right in terms of salaries in society

         25  in these type of pressure cookers, our officers
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          2  aren't treated right, our firefighters aren't

          3  treated right this way, our EMTs aren't treated

          4  right, I mean we could go through all of this in the

          5  civil service, and this may be a particular problem

          6  that has to be examined. Not by you, but by

          7  Commissioner Hanley and other folks, but it is about

          8  time that that has to be addressed also.

          9                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Well, you

         10  are correct, that is a collective bargaining issue.

         11  But I agree with you. I go to Metrotech often, I

         12  speak with both the dispatch and the call-takers and

         13  I recognize how valuable the job is that they do,

         14  how stressful it can be, and how important it is,

         15  since they are very often the first contact that the

         16  public has with the Police Department and how they

         17  respond really gives the public the impression of

         18  what kind of Department we are.

         19                 So, I am very supportive of whatever

         20  increased compensation there can be for Metrotech

         21  personnel within the constraints of the collective

         22  bargaining agreements.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: I commend

         24  to my colleagues, get police scanners and listen to

         25  them at night and you will hear the work that is
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          2  being done out there, aside from our uniformed

          3  members who are out there, but those individuals who

          4  are 911 operators, and we say God bless them.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Thank you,

          6  Council Member McCaffrey.

          7                 On two points that you have made

          8  recently, when you say that 95 percent of the calls

          9  to E911 are answered within 30 seconds; answered

         10  with what? I mean, does that include answering with

         11  a recording?

         12                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: No, that

         13  is a human being.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: With a human

         15  being.

         16                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: That's

         17  correct.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Ninety-five

         19  percent of the time a human being answers within 30

         20  seconds.

         21                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: That's

         22  correct.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: And second, in

         24  testimony that the Council has gotten in the past

         25  from unions representing the civilian employees,
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          2  their feeling has been that 950 is still a number

          3  that is too little and that we should be trying to

          4  build up the numbers of people who respond to 911

          5  calls, what is your reaction to that?

          6                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: My

          7  reaction is we have done an analysis, we believe

          8  that 913 is adequate.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Can you provide

         10  us with the analysis, please?

         11                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Sure.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Okay.

         13                 Council Member Madeline Provenzano.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Thank you,

         15  Mr. Chairman.

         16                 Good morning.

         17                 The issue I am going to raise may be

         18  insignificant but it has suddenly occurred to me.

         19                 Since the past few weeks we have been

         20  involved in mosquito watch, and my particular

         21  district has been one of the probably more involved

         22  in the mosquito watch and now we are in hurricane

         23  watch this week, I can hardly wait for next week, I

         24  would assume, or we all assume that people either

         25  listen to the radio or watch TV, so when you put a
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          2  number on, for instance, a number they gave,

          3  emergency number, we assume that everybody knows

          4  that number and they will call.

          5                 My feeling is the great majority of

          6  people are not watching TV, are not listening to

          7  their radio, and all they think of in emergency is

          8  911. And that is probably what happened in the past

          9  few weeks and I think will happen again.

         10                 When people do call 911 for

         11  situations like that, are they redirected to an

         12  emergency number, or depending on what their

         13  complaint may be, does someone try and help them?

         14                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Sure.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: I am

         16  interested in knowing what happens.

         17                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Yes, if it

         18  is a non-emergency we give them the proper number to

         19  call. If it is an emergency, of course we help them

         20  with whatever emergency it is. But, for instance,

         21  there is a mosquito hot line which we have, and if

         22  somebody calls relative to that, if it is a

         23  non-emergency, we would give them that number.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: So, all of

         25  your personnel who are on duty are informed of what
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          2  --

          3                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Yes.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: And of

          5  course that is a changing --

          6                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR. Sure. As

          7  you stated, there is a different issue every week.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Right.

          9  Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Thank you.

         11                 Just a few more questions. I

         12  understand that elsewhere in the country there is a

         13  so-called 911-2 system, pursuant to which a person

         14  who dials 911 will receive an immediate connection

         15  with an automated voice instructing him or her to

         16  press 1 for the Police Department --

         17                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Right.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: 2 for the Fire

         19  Department. If a person selects the Fire Department,

         20  the caller is routed to the borough where he or she

         21  is making the call.

         22                 Will such a 911-2 system become part

         23  of the Enhanced 911 system?

         24                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: No, it is

         25  not something that we believe works very
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          2  effectively. We believe that basically it is the

          3  same kind of frustration that people get when they

          4  call a large company and get, you know, if you want

          5  lingerie press 1, if you want service press 2, press

          6  3, press 4, we want a human being doing that kind of

          7  stuff.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: With respect to

          9  the standards of the E 911 facility, I understand

         10  there are guidelines promulgated by a group such as

         11  the National Fire Department Association regarding

         12  the construction of an emergency communications

         13  facility, and that other big cities have complied

         14  with these so-called guidelines. Is the Department

         15  building the E-911 system on the basis of any

         16  national standard or guideline?

         17                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Yes, I

         18  guess what you are talking about, going back to my

         19  old Fire Commissioner days, are the NFPA, the

         20  National Fire Prevention Association, and we use

         21  those standards.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: You are using

         23  those standards?

         24                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Yes, we

         25  are.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: And at our

          3  previous hearing on February 17th, I pointed out the

          4  City Comptroller in his audits found that 911

          5  operators, the 911 operators guide contain no

          6  diagrams of new E 911 consoles, no floor layout

          7  covering the E-911 at Metrotech Center, no reference

          8  to the automated number identification.

          9                 Commissioner Baker, you said that the

         10  Comptroller's recommendations were based on

         11  information available at the time of the audit and

         12  that the Comptroller's Office didn't account for

         13  the, quote, fact that we do hands-on training and we

         14  do it periodically and consistently through the

         15  years so that E-911 operators and call-takers are

         16  sufficiently trained on the new equipment. Were you

         17  saying that the training was a substitute for a

         18  thorough operator's guide with diagrams and floor

         19  plan?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BAKER: Just a

         21  second, please.

         22                 The floor plans and diagrams are all

         23  in the training manuals, and we do conduct regular

         24  periodic training because we don't expect everyone

         25  to memorize everything, and training is not -- there
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          2  is no substitute for training to keep people updated

          3  on the procedures in process. So, we do conduct

          4  training and we conduct roll call training on a

          5  daily basis also.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Were these

          7  diagrams of the E-911 consoles and floor layout in

          8  your materials at the time of the Comptroller's

          9  audit? Or were they added subsequent to the audit?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BAKER: Those were

         11  subsequent to the audit.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Subsequent to

         13  the audit.

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BAKER: Right. And

         15  they were provided to your office, too, by the way.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: And now in the

         17  audit.

         18                 Okay, are there any additional

         19  questions?

         20                 Council Member Robles.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Commissioner,

         22  let me go back to my colleague's question, Council

         23  Member Reed, which it has been a question that when

         24  you were the Fire Commissioner it was brought up and

         25  now as the Police Commissioner, and I am glad that
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          2  some other colleagues are picking it up, but let me

          3  make sure that I understand this area of the calls

          4  coming in.

          5                 Let me begin by saying it has been

          6  brought to may attention, unconfirmed reports

          7  indicate that as many as 40 percent of the emergency

          8  calls are Spanish in origin. Is that correct, or is

          9  that just a wild number?

         10                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: My staff

         11  tells me that that is very high.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: That is high.

         13                 Let me then, because I want to get to

         14  a point, one, the call-takers are trained before

         15  they get hired and this training so that whoever

         16  calls, they are trained to know how to deal and

         17  route the calls properly, so that if it is priority

         18  in terms of immediate response, they know exactly

         19  how it falls, like I think I know the old and the

         20  new 911, is that fair to say?

         21                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: That is

         22  correct.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Okay, so,

         24  let's walk through the shifts. For example, the

         25  Commissioner said, the
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          2  Deputy Commissioner said in the question that the 4

          3  to 12 is where you have your peak, your most calls

          4  coming in; is that what I heard?

          5                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: That's

          6  correct.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Of those

          8  calls, how many of those calls come in with people

          9  who English is not the principle language?

         10                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: We don't

         11  have that with us, we do keep the records and we

         12  will be happy to provide it for you.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: I would be

         14  interested to see that.

         15                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Sure.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: The same thing

         17  with the 8 to 4, because then the next question will

         18  be: In order to follow this chart after you deal

         19  with it, please add to -- the respond is, let's look

         20  at the shifts and the call-takers based upon what

         21  comes in.

         22                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Sure.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Because while

         24  as a Puerto Rican and Latino, in my community now I

         25  am seeing a change of Chinese, Vietnamese and so
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          2  when we say language, while the majority I believe

          3  in this City still is Spanish-speaking, in terms of

          4  those that you need to deal with it, that is number

          5  one.

          6                 Number two, let me tell you about

          7  this respond of the phone system in 43 languages.

          8  When that kicks in, are those operators trained like

          9  your operators, 911, in order to -- I mean, I don't

         10  need an interpreter just to interpret --

         11                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: They are

         12  not trained, but it is a three-way call, the

         13  operator stays on the line. The 911 operator stays

         14  on the line, so they are there and basically this is

         15  just what you said, it is a translation.  But it

         16  enables the person calling to communicate to the 911

         17  operator.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: So, understand

         19  where I am coming from, it is important to me

         20  particularly where the peak hours are where the most

         21  of your calls come in, that I would like to see

         22  whether you are addressing, rather than relying upon

         23  a hook-up, that I believe is in California --

         24                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: That's

         25  correct.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: I believe you

          3  kept saying that. Well, I must tell you that with

          4  all due respect to the phone company and I am from

          5  the State of New York and I am from the City. I

          6  would rather deal with the issues here in the City

          7  and not someone from California.

          8                 So, I am not being critical, I just

          9  want to make sure that this issue is really

         10  addressed.

         11                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: I

         12  understand that, and we will be happy to take a look

         13  at it, and I think you will find that the frequency

         14  is much lower than you think.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Okay, fine.

         16  Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Councilman

         18  Martin Golden.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: Thank you, Mr.

         20  Chairman.

         21                 Good morning, gentlemen.

         22                 The two minor questions here. How

         23  would we rate ourselves, New York City, compared to

         24  the other Cities around the country and the 911

         25  system?
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          2                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Oh, I

          3  think we are the best. I don't think there is

          4  another public answering service system in the

          5  country which works as well as we do.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: Per capita,

          7  numbers of calls.

          8                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Per

          9  capita. Percentage-wise, number of people and there

         10  is no place, no place in the world that gets the

         11  volume of calls that we get.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: Excellent.

         13                 I have the most important question,

         14  and it has probably been answered already, has the

         15  request for proposal for the new technology, has

         16  that been designed yet?

         17                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: It has

         18  been designed, it has been released.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: It has been

         20  released, and what date are we --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: We are going to

         22  get a copy of it.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: This is the

         24  most --

         25                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR:
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          2  Absolutely. Yes, absolutely.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: What date is

          4  that to be?

          5                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Well, it

          6  has been released, and as you all know better than I

          7  what the City's procurement and contracting process

          8  requires, and that will take, we figure, about six

          9  months before we have an actual contractor.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: And will MCI

         11  be part of that? Will they bid in for that as well?

         12  The one that couldn't complete the job?

         13                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: They can

         14  bid, sure.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: Okay, thank

         16  you very much, gentlemen. Have a good day.

         17                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Just two final

         19  question areas. One is with respect to cost

         20  overruns. Our Finance staff says that we now have an

         21  cost overrun in the system between 30 and $33

         22  million, and if we don't collect back, get back the

         23  $20 million from MCI, we will have still an

         24  additional $20 million overrun which would put us

         25  over $200 million for a system that was designed to
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          2  cost $156 million.

          3                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: I will ask

          4  Commissioner Wuensch to address that.

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WUENSCH: Yes.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Isn't that at

          7  this stage with significant elements of the system

          8  still not operational, a large cost overrun?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WUENSCH: We

         10  wouldn't describe it as a cost overrun. I think you

         11  are talking about two elements. One is budget

         12  estimate, and you know what budgets are, they are

         13  essentially estimates, of what the new CAD system

         14  will cost. And our current estimate included in the

         15  numbers you are talking about is $20 million.

         16                 In addition to that, the cost for

         17  constructing the new PSAC II at the new location at

         18  109 Park Row, in terms of demolishing the building

         19  and all of the intricate work that will be required

         20  to do it, is about $33 million. Now, these aren't

         21  cost overruns. The assumptions are markedly

         22  different than at the time the PSAC II was

         23  originally envisioned. There was a possibility that

         24  it could be done in police headquarters, that proved

         25  to be not true. Inflation has crept in over the last
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          2  four or five years, so we wouldn't describe these as

          3  cost overruns. We are looking at $33 million in

          4  essence is to build the new facility at 109 Park

          5  Row, and the $20 million is an assumption of how

          6  much the new CAD system will cost, but of course

          7  that will be the result of the responses to the RFP

          8  process.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: A system that

         10  was designed originally to cost $156 million would

         11  wind up costing what?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WUENSCH: It

         13  depends. As I said at that point in time it wasn't

         14  envisioned that we were going to construct a brand

         15  new and demolish a building to put it up.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: I think it

         17  really was envisioned. I was here at that time, and

         18  I mean it wasn't pinned down as to just what the

         19  dual hot site, it was going to be looked into.

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WUENSCH: We

         21  didn't have a site for PSAC II at that point in

         22  time. There was no site. So it was very difficult to

         23  provide a budget estimate at that point in time. So

         24  now we have some realistic numbers and we think

         25  those numbers will come in to bear, and so we would
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          2  not address it as a cost overrun.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: I think that

          4  most people would look upon it as a cost overrun. I

          5  mean, in the sense that we had an original $156

          6  million budget, we are now looking at a budget that

          7  is, you know, that seems to me to be $30 million to

          8  $33 million above, plus the contingency of how much

          9  we get back from System House if we don't get that

         10  all back, and we are talking about another $20

         11  million that we paid them that we may not -- you

         12  know, we have to see how much we get back.

         13                 Just one other area, less

         14  controversial. I understand that the charges of

         15  cellular phones don't go to the City's treasury, the

         16  35 cent surcharge on calls, that is correct, isn't

         17  it?

         18                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: It goes to

         19  the state, I am told.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: It goes to the

         21  state, right.

         22                 Are you seeking to pursue legislation

         23  to get at least part of that funding for each of

         24  those calls coming? Because I mean you do answer

         25  those calls, just like any other call, do you not?
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          2                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: We have

          3  not, but I think it is an excellent idea to take a

          4  look at. Sure.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Look into it.

          6                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Sure, it

          7  seems like a good suggestion.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Okay.

          9                 Any other questions? Otherwise the

         10  Commissioner says that he has another appointment.

         11                 Thank you very much.

         12                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Our next meeting

         14  is October 6th on the gun safety legislation, and we

         15  hope to see you then. October 26th on the proposals

         16  with respect to reducing police abuse that we have

         17  had in this Committee and the Public Safety Task

         18  Force following the Louima case. And November 3rd we

         19  have the hearing annually required on the Mayor's

         20  Management Report.

         21                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: The only

         22  date that I am not sure on is the 26th, and I will

         23  have my staff get back to you on that.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Okay. Thank you.

         25                 Welcome, also. And congratulations,
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          2  Mr. Dunne, on your elevation. Best wishes as Chief

          3  of Department.

          4                 MR. DUNNE: Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Bell Atlantic is

          6  our next witness.

          7                 We have also been joined by Council

          8  Member Juanita Watkins, who is the chair of the

          9  Subcommittee under this Committee of District

         10  Attorneys, Courts and Investigations.

         11                 Could we please have quiet? I am told

         12  there is another committee that is going to be

         13  meeting here at 1:00 so we have to try to finish up

         14  by then.

         15                 Please identify yourself for the

         16  record.

         17                 MR. ROSENZWEIG: David Rosenzweig.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER:  Another David

         19  Rosenzweig? Isn't his name David Rosenzweig on your

         20  right just behind you?

         21                 MR. ROSENZWEIG: Yes, I have been told

         22  that is true, Chairman.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: It is a good

         24  name to hear to me.

         25                 Do you have any comments that you
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          2  would like to make, having heard the testimony?

          3                 MR. ROSENZWEIG: Chairman Leffler, I

          4  did not prepare formal testimony, I was prepared to

          5  discuss the delay issue that you addressed earlier.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Right. We have

          7  had some testimony from the Commissioner with

          8  respect to changes implemented and the source of the

          9  problems. Do you want to elaborate at all on that?

         10                 MR. ROSENZWEIG: I am prepared to

         11  elaborate and explain what did occur and what

         12  efforts we undertook to correct that problem.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: These are the

         14  April 28th and May 5th incidents?

         15                 MR. ROSENZWEIG: Yes, that's correct.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Please.

         17                 MR. ROSENZWEIG: I would like to use

         18  the easel. I am just going to briefly outline the

         19  way the 911 system operates in New York City. I will

         20  show you the difficulty we face and then the problem

         21  we ultimately corrected.

         22                 We have two tandem switches that

         23  serve New York City for 911, and one is at West

         24  Street, one is at Bridge Street.

         25                 Callers in Manhattan and the Bronx
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          2  principally point toward the West Street switch when

          3  they dial 911 and that call completes to the PSAC.

          4                 Callers from the other three boroughs

          5  go into the switch which is located at Bridge Street

          6  and Bridge Street completes its traffic to the PSAC.

          7                 In addition, we have circuits that go

          8  between West Street and Bridge Street.

          9                 In addition to the circuits that go

         10  to West Street from this central office, and I can

         11  pick any one serving Manhattan or the Bronx, we also

         12  have trunks that go to Bridge Street so there is an

         13  alternate route, and similarly for an office in

         14  Brooklyn, for example, it could first go to Bridge

         15  Street, we also have trunks to West Street.

         16                 The third route to provide even

         17  greater redundancy is that if these two routes are

         18  busy, then the third route is to go to something we

         19  call TOPS, which is Traffic Operation Position

         20  System, a call would go here and then automatically

         21  go to the PSAC.

         22                 What we found was that when we moved

         23  to Signaling System 7 for 911 calls, and that was

         24  used to improve the call set-up time or to get the

         25  call faster to the PSAC, we previously used
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          2  something called multi-frequency signaling and you

          3  have sometimes heard the tones on the line after you

          4  dial a number. That was replaced with something

          5  called Signaling System 7, again, to set the call up

          6  faster.

          7                 What we found was that in a very

          8  unique situation, after we started to convert the

          9  signaling from here to here with SS7, we found in

         10  the unique situation where the call went from here

         11  to West Street and then went to Bridge Street, and

         12  that would be the way the cues were arranged, so the

         13  call overflowed, we found that there a delay in that

         14  particular route and then worked with Lucent, who is

         15  the manufacturer of the switch.

         16                 These are large computer systems

         17  called 5ESS in our language, manufactured by Lucent

         18  Technologies.

         19                 What we were able to do, after an

         20  incredible amount of effort, because this problem

         21  was reported as having occurred three times, it took

         22  a tremendous amount of effort and technical

         23  sleuthing to ultimately grab one of those calls that

         24  failed with enough information so we could break

         25  down what exactly the problem was and in working
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          2  with Lucent found that there was a way we could

          3  reduce the time it took for the call to transit this

          4  path.

          5                 So, if the call did not go this way,

          6  the set up time from here to here is about a second

          7  normally, takes another second to get to the PSAC,

          8  so you are talking two to three seconds with an SS7

          9  type of call. What we found was when it went this

         10  route, which would be based on the configuration at

         11  that moment, those numbers of calls did encounter a

         12  delay which we were ultimately able to remove by

         13  working with Lucent to change the software, so that

         14  delay does not exist today.

         15                 The conversion to SS7 trunking is

         16  virtually complete in New York City, meaning that

         17  all calls are set up faster than prior to the time

         18  we had SS7 signaling. So that works to our

         19  collective advantage, to get them all set up faster.

         20  But in this one unique situation, we had to do some

         21  serious research to find out what the problem was,

         22  and that delay then was taken out and I think as

         23  reported that was completed on May 7th.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Okay, thank you.

         25                 Was there a downing of the system on
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          2  May 10th?

          3                 MR. ROSENZWEIG: Not to my knowledge,

          4  Chairman.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Not to your

          6  knowledge.

          7                 Were you familiar with reports that

          8  occurred that there was a downing on May 10th?

          9                 MR. ROSENZWEIG: No, I was not. I was

         10  intimately familiar with this and the other system

         11  level problems because I have network services

         12  responsibility, but I was satisfied after the 7th

         13  there were no other system level issues.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: The problem then

         15  shouldn't relate in the future to future testing?

         16                 MR. ROSENZWEIG: It should not.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Okay, Councilman

         18  Robles.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Yes. In

         20  addition to what you just laid out, you were in the

         21  room when the question was asked both by Council

         22  Member Reed and myself, are you the system that

         23  connects the interpreter services also? Are you the

         24  same group that does the California, or is that

         25  different?
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          2                 MR. ROSENZWEIG: No, we are not the

          3  same group that does that.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER:  Do you conduct

          6  tests, as well as the Police Department? Or is it

          7  just the Police Department which conducts, as has

          8  been testified?

          9                 MR. ROSENZWEIG: We do not conduct

         10  tests, except if the Police Department comes to us

         11  and says there is an issue, then we would sometimes

         12  do testing, but we rely on the testing they do.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Okay.

         14                 Councilman Stanley Michels.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I am

         16  concerned about the electrical failure. What is the

         17  back-up as far as electrical failure is concerned?

         18                 MR. ROSENZWEIG: The central office

         19  systems are battery backed up and then backed up

         20  again with auto start generators, so that today the

         21  batteries actually run the switch and the batteries

         22  are charged by the commercial power provided by Con

         23  Ed.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: And what is

         25  the duration? How long do those batteries, in case
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          2  we have a massive electrical failure, how long can

          3  those batteries and generators last?

          4                 MR. ROSENZWEIG: The batteries will

          5  run without charging for four to eight hours. The

          6  auto-start generators will start as soon as there is

          7  a power failure, and will run for as long as we

          8  provide fuel. Now, typically in our big offices we

          9  may have anywhere up to 10,000 gallon tanks, and I

         10  think as you know, over the summer with the power

         11  outtage in Northern Manhattan, those telephone

         12  offices ran continuously with no interruptions.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: And I

         14  remember in '65 the bit blackout, the telephones

         15  were the most reliable things we had. But we did

         16  have three days, certain areas three days. So, you

         17  have enough fuel to last over three days?

         18                 MR. ROSENZWEIG: We had tanker trucks

         19  on standby to refuel those, if needed.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: So, in other

         21  words there was really no threat to the electrical,

         22  you are not threatened by an electrical failure?

         23                 MR. ROSENZWEIG: I am scared by it,

         24  but we make arrangements --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I mean as far
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          2  as back-up is concerned. You feel confident that

          3  there is no circumstances that exist, which can

          4  affect the telephone service?

          5                 MR. ROSENZWEIG: As long as we can get

          6  fuel on a periodic basis, we can run the office on a

          7  generator for an extended period of time. The three

          8  days that we ran in Northern Manhattan for two

          9  central offices was longer than we would normally

         10  run because we do run monthly for a few hours. But

         11  we could have run for a much longer period of time,

         12  if required.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: How long?

         14                 MR. ROSENZWEIG: There was no limit,

         15  because the generators require fuel and they require

         16  some down time, but we have more than one generator

         17  in these buildings.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Okay, thank

         19  you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: The Commissioner

         21  referred in his testimony to your hard-wiring the

         22  system at Metrotech.

         23                 MR. ROSENZWEIG: Yes.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: How is that

         25  going?
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          2                 MR. ROSENZWEIG: I believe he

          3  indicated that would be completed shortly.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: That is what he

          5  indicated, that will be completed shortly?

          6                 MR. ROSENZWEIG: I have no other

          7  information on that.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: And in the

          9  diagram that you showed before, there was a back-up

         10  before West Street and Bridge Street; is that right?

         11                 MR. ROSENZWEIG: I am sorry, there are

         12  three routes. There is a route from a given central

         13  office where we provide phone service to a community

         14  that goes to their principle tandem, which in

         15  Manhattan and the Bronx is West Street. The overflow

         16  route, if that route were busy, it would route

         17  advance automatically to the switch in Brooklyn at

         18  Bridge Street. And if that route were busy, it would

         19  automatically route advance to a third system called

         20  TOPS, which would then bring back traffic to the

         21  PSAC directly.

         22                 So, there are three paths in addition

         23  to the path that exists between the two tandem

         24  switches.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: And you check
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          2  each from time to time as to their functioning?

          3                 MR. ROSENZWEIG: We know at all times

          4  the condition of those circuits, because the system

          5  will automatically report to us if the circuits are

          6  out of service. With regard to delays the police

          7  would report that to us.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: We also

          9  discussed shall we say upgrading the telephone

         10  system at One Police Plaza, to make it compatible

         11  with the public service answering center, pursuant

         12  to which there would not have to be a special

         13  changeover of the calls coming into the Public

         14  Service Answering Center to get them to One Police

         15  Plaza, if by chance this happened on January 31st,

         16  there was an inoperability of the Metrotech Center.

         17  You have submitted the proposal to do this, right?

         18  You are doing this work at Police Plaza?

         19                 MR. ROSENZWEIG: My understanding is

         20  Bell Atlantic did submit a proposal for that work.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Can you explain

         22  what it involves and when it is going to be

         23  completed?

         24                 MR. ROSENZWEIG: I don't have the

         25  specifics, if I can go back to the Board I can
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          2  explain what is involved however. Oh, there is no

          3  board. Let me talk you through it.

          4                 There are actually -- hold on one

          5  second. (witness leaves the table and microphone.)

          6  When that worked on Superbowl Sunday, that system

          7  was served out of another switch here in West

          8  Street, and in fact what we did was point traffic

          9  from this world over to this switch, so that in West

         10  Street, at 140 West Street, we actually have four

         11  separate switches or large computer systems. What

         12  exists at One Police Plaza is really a separate

         13  system served out of another switch. What the

         14  Commissioner talked about is that it is better for

         15  all concerned if you could have agents logged into

         16  this system at another location, so that if you then

         17  had a problem here, it wouldn't be a matter of

         18  pointing traffic to another switch, they would

         19  already be part of that system, and instead of an

         20  agent here answering the call, the agent physically

         21  at this location in the same system would answer the

         22  calls. So, on Superbowl Sunday we actually routed

         23  traffic into another system to complete the calls.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: And we can do

         25  that in the future?
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          2                 MR. ROSENZWEIG: Once that work is

          3  completed to add agents from this system at another

          4  physical location, then we will be able to make that

          5  type of a change. So, the system today has all of

          6  its agents actually answering calls at one physical

          7  location, although they are served out of two

          8  switches. The next step would be to take the one

          9  system and spread it over two locations.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: And when will

         11  that occur?

         12                 MR. ROSENZWEIG: I am sorry, I don't

         13  have all the information. I think the Commissioner

         14  commented in terms of his testimony when that would

         15  complete.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Any further

         17  questions?

         18                 If not, thanks very much.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: I just have

         20  one very quick question.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Mr. Golden.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: Dividing it

         23  into the same amount of calls going into two

         24  different stations, is that going to be in place in

         25  the PSA 2, is that going to be a PSA 2 created as
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          2  well, a back-up system?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: It is going to

          4  be another system, an additional system.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: It will be

          6  part of the same system and that will still be at

          7  PSA 2, a back-up system created.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: It is my

          9  understanding you are going to have this -- well, I

         10  mean the PSA 2 is designed to be an additional

         11  system that is running and operational and will be

         12  up at the same time as the PSA 1 that we now have,

         13  and both will have, you know, they are supposed to

         14  be dual hot sites.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: And PSA 1 is

         16  going to be two dual sites as well now, and they

         17  will be able to take the same capacity, though, if

         18  one station goes down, then we will be able to send

         19  it to the other station; is that basically it?

         20                 MR. ROSENZWEIG: I don't know all of

         21  the plans. My understanding would be that the

         22  redundance that we have in the network is what you

         23  would want at the station and where calls are

         24  answered. So that while our network here can run, if

         25  you eliminated this central office, we can complete
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          2  all traffic. I believe the intent would be that if

          3  you had a disaster at one location where calls were

          4  answered, the second location could handle the bulk

          5  of the traffic, let's say.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: And that is

          7  not in place, there will be a PSA 2 as well; is that

          8  correct?

          9                 MR. ROSENZWEIG: That is what I would

         10  expect. Moving some stations to this location begins

         11  to give that capability.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: I think what he

         14  is saying is, if we had, and we hope to have in

         15  2002, PSAC I and 2 operational, if one unfortunately

         16  were to go down, we have PSA 2 operational. Is PSAC

         17  II then went down at the same time, this would still

         18  be functioning, would it not, at One Police Plaza?

         19                 MR. ROSENZWEIG: To the extent that

         20  that is part of the plan, yes. Then you would have

         21  three locations. I don't know what the long-term

         22  plan is for the City in that regard.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: You know, that

         24  is not something that is going to go into effect now

         25  for at least a couple of years.
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          2                 You know, this is being completed in

          3  the near future and then PSAC II has to get going

          4  and then it is going to take two years for

          5  construction and then we can revisit this, that

          6  question. Which, you know, I don't know that it has

          7  been answered by the Department.

          8                 Any additional questions? If not,

          9  thank you very much, Mr. Rosenzweig.

         10                 MR. ROSENZWEIG: Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: And we will move

         12  on to another Mr. David Rosenzweig in the near

         13  future. Thank you.

         14                 Okay, we have District Council 37,

         15  which represents the 911 operators. They have

         16  testified before this Committee on these matters in

         17  the past.

         18                 Is Mr. Saunders here? Welcome; nice

         19  to see you.

         20                 MR. SAUNDERS: Good afternoon.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Not quite.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: But close.

         23                 MR. SAUNDERS: While I am asking some

         24  technicians who actually perform the job of 911 to

         25  come up with me and to speak to you.
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          2                 Let me just say first, Mr. Chairman,

          3  we welcome this opportunity to discuss the issues

          4  and problems at the Center. I listened intently to

          5  the testimony of the Commissioner, I also listened

          6  intently to the responses to some of the questions

          7  that he provided the Subcommittee. Let me say with

          8  all due respect that we must be living in a

          9  different world than the Commissioner, because the

         10  problems that exist at 911 at the Center are real,

         11  the overtime issues are real, the mandatory overtime

         12  issues are real where individuals are working 16

         13  hours straight, the understaffing issues are very

         14  real that must be dealt with.

         15                 I think that it is important and I do

         16  have a prepared statement to make, but I also

         17  believe it is extremely important that you hear from

         18  people that actually performed the service, that

         19  provide the essential services, who are dedicated

         20  employees, who are working 16 hours, who probably

         21  have never been on a cruise in their life, but are

         22  performing essential services to the public, but are

         23  under a great amount of stress, based upon the

         24  overtime issues, based upon the understaffing.

         25                 There is one thing that I would agree
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          2  with, as far as the Commissioner stated, and that is

          3  spend some time yourselves to come out and take a

          4  look at what is happening there. I did that about a

          5  month ago and I visited every tour, the three tours

          6  that exist, and I saw some real problems there.

          7                 I saw people that had been working 16

          8  hours who could hardly keep their eyes open because

          9  of the mandatory overtime, yet they are still

         10  responsible for providing essential services.

         11                 I saw many safety and health

         12  violations and broken equipment that need to be

         13  dealt with, so, again, the world that we live in,

         14  and the members that we represent at 911, that world

         15  is a little bit different. In fact, a whole lot

         16  different than what has been presented before you.

         17                 My name is Lee Saunders, I am the

         18  Administrator of District Council 37, AFSCME,

         19  AFL-CIO. I am here today on behalf of the 125,000

         20  members of District Council 37 to discuss serious

         21  problems facing our members and staff, the 911

         22  emergency operation system as police communication

         23  technicians. But the issues I want to talk about

         24  today affect not only our members and their

         25  families, they pertain to the safety and welfare of
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          2  all New Yorkers.

          3                 DC 37 represents more than 900 911

          4  workers who serve in the titles supervising police

          5  communication technicians and police communications

          6  technicians. DC 37 also represents more than 7,600

          7  employees who serve in various clerical

          8  administrative, blue collar, computer and

          9  professional titles throughout the New York Police

         10  Department's various commands, including precincts,

         11  laboratories and headquarters.

         12                 When the City residents desperate for

         13  help call 911, and in July alone they called 1

         14  million times, our police communications technicians

         15  are their lifeline. But the lifeline has been

         16  tattered by severe staffing shortages and unbearable

         17  working conditions.

         18                 There are currently only 850

         19  technicians to handle what will amount to more than

         20  10 million calls this year. Although the union has

         21  been informed of plans to hire additional

         22  technicians or PCTs in time for the summer workload

         23  crunch, the Department of Citywide Administrative

         24  Services sat on the paperwork, the Office of

         25  Management and Budget sat on the money, and the
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          2  employees bore the brunt of the resulting workload

          3  crisis.

          4                 Most troubling of all, the citizens

          5  of New York City were placed in danger.

          6                 The understaffing of 911 has created

          7  intolerable overtime demands resulting in PCTs being

          8  forced to work 16 hour shifts with no advance

          9  notice.

         10                 Imagine, just imagine calling 911 in

         11  a panic with a life or death situation in your

         12  hands, and being told by a tape message to please

         13  stay on the line.

         14                 Imagine having to relate vital and

         15  often complicated information in the middle of the

         16  night to an exhausted technician who has been

         17  handling a deluge of calls since the previous

         18  morning, a technician who has been forced, at the

         19  last minute, to choose between disciplinary action

         20  and leaving her children home alone. Clearly these

         21  are not conditions conducive to saving lives or

         22  thwarting crimes, instead they constitute a threat

         23  to public safety.

         24                 The extent of this threat can be

         25  measured in time, specifically the amount of time it

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            106

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  takes to answer an emergency call. To give you an

          3  idea of how troubling the situation has become,

          4  please consider the following.

          5                 During the eight months of 1999,

          6  nearly a quarter of a million calls were

          7  characterized by the Police Department as delays,

          8  meaning that it took longer than 30 seconds for the

          9  call to be answered by a 911 technician.

         10  Unfortunately, the Department does not provide much

         11  further analysis of these calls. We cannot, for

         12  example, break down the calls by the amount of time

         13  the caller waited to get through, but the number of

         14  delayed calls through August 1999 is a staggering

         15  110 percent increase over the number of calls that

         16  took 30 seconds or longer to answer during the first

         17  eight months of 1998.

         18                 I need not point out to the members

         19  of this Committee the 1998 figures while profoundly

         20  lower than the 1999 counterparts are intolerable.

         21  Delays endanger lives. The numbers of delays that

         22  have plagued us this year are especially disturbing

         23  when you consider that we have been voicing our

         24  concerns about the status of the state of 911 for

         25  months.
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          2                 In addition, as the press has

          3  reported, technical glitches plague the system,

          4  causing dangerous pockets of silence that have kept

          5  callers from getting through to technicians.

          6                 Although these pockets of silence

          7  have been infrequent, more common are the occasions

          8  when the system goes down and technicians have to

          9  switch from computers to handling emergency calls

         10  manually.

         11                 This shift is akin to working on a

         12  state-of-the-art computer one minute, and being

         13  forced to revert to an old Royal typewriter the

         14  next. Remember that old Royal typewriter? I do. A

         15  major inconvenience with most lines of business, but

         16  911 technicians are in the extremely stressful

         17  business of saving lives.

         18                 Although the blame has been passed

         19  around since 911's computer problems became public,

         20  this much is clear: The New York Police Department

         21  has failed to keep pace of the changing technology

         22  required to adequately meet the public safety needs

         23  of the citizens of New York.

         24                 Consistently during the midnight to

         25  8:00 a.m. tour there is not one bilingual call-taker
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          2  on duty. An increased cellphone use by the public

          3  increases the volume of calls and complicates the

          4  workload.

          5                 In July DC 37 won a short-term

          6  victory in what is truly a long-term battle. NYPD

          7  agreed to eliminate the six-day work week and

          8  implemented a more equitable and objective process

          9  for selection of overtime and reassignment of

         10  personnel.

         11                 In addition, the Department moved

         12  forward with plans to hire 110 new 911 employees. We

         13  believe, however, that this number is woefully short

         14  of the staffing levels required to assure maximum

         15  operating efficiency.

         16                 In the interest of public safety, the

         17  NYPD must establish an aggressive plan that includes

         18  the following:

         19                 Number one, a minimal staffing level

         20  of at least a total of 15 PCTs and SPCTs at all

         21  times.

         22                 Part of the reason we are in our

         23  current predicament is that there wasn't a plan to

         24  ensure hiring in February and March for the jump in

         25  calls that inevitably occurred in the summer.
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          2                 NYPD also need to revamp the hiring

          3  process to ensure that delays in PCT classes are

          4  eliminated.

          5                 Number two, institution of a

          6  proactive hiring plan with ambitious recruitment and

          7  retention goals. The high monthly attrition rate is

          8  17 to 20 workers within the emergency operation

          9  system must be taken into account as part of the

         10  plan. Incentives to reduce attrition could include

         11  the child care facility, promotional opportunities,

         12  the provision of transportation when working late.

         13                 Number three, increased training. The

         14  establishment of regular and ongoing training in

         15  such areas as crisis intervention, team building and

         16  anger management would help staffers manage the high

         17  stress level that comes with the job.

         18                 Number four, meaningful solutions to

         19  the technological programs at 911. We should

         20  reinstitute the E-911 Joint Labor Management

         21  Committee to develop long range and short range

         22  plans to meet the current and future demands being

         23  placed on the 911 operation.

         24                 On behalf of District Council 37, I

         25  would like to thank you for this opportunity to

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            110

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  share our concerns about the present conditions in

          3  the 911 operation. But Mr. Chairman, I honestly

          4  believe that it is important to hear from the people

          5  that actually perform this service and that is why

          6  we have individuals sitting here next to me, and if

          7  you would, I would like them to make brief

          8  statements regarding their job and the problems that

          9  they experience on the job and then we can answer

         10  any kind of question, if that is okay with you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Okay, sure. And

         12  we think it is important too, and we tried to work

         13  with DC 37 on this matter of E-911 staffing over the

         14  years. You know, it wasn't just the Police

         15  Department that decided to hire an additional 63

         16  people, this summer we stressed this issue in the

         17  budget negotiations and appropriated the additional

         18  money and as a result they went out and did the

         19  hiring. So, it was not part of the Mayor's Executive

         20  Budget. We have likewise, as I think that you have

         21  heard, asked that they submit their plan as to their

         22  study as to how they justify a staffing of 950, why

         23  they think that is the appropriate number when the

         24  workers who do the work presumably know about, you

         25  know, what there is to be done there. And the
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          2  pressures and the burdens think a lot more.

          3                 Actually, hopefully when we get this

          4  study we can go over it with you, and if you have a

          5  similar type of plan as to why you think the

          6  appropriate number is 1,500, I would be glad to see

          7  that. I mean, it seems to me there is quite a

          8  disparity as to what you think, you know, are the

          9  appropriate staffing levels.

         10                 MR. SAUNDERS: We are prepared to talk

         11  with you about that and to provide specific

         12  information on how we came to that number.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: That makes

         14  sense.

         15                 We have also been joined by Tracy

         16  Boyland, a member of the Council.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: Mr. Chairman,

         18  if I may for a second.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Council Member

         20  Golden.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: I think this

         22  Committee would probably appreciate an on-site tour.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: We have actually

         24  gone. I went myself, I think some other members of

         25  the Committee went when we knew E-911 was opened in
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          2  1996, after the end of '95 and '96, it phased in in

          3  different boroughs --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: There are a

          5  couple of rookies here now though.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Yes. We will

          7  arrange for a meeting, for a visit for those members

          8  who want to go who haven't gone, I think that makes

          9  sense.

         10                 MR. SAUNDERS: Okay. As I said, I

         11  would like to introduce technicians, members of

         12  District Council 37 Local 1549, who actually provide

         13  these essential services.

         14                 Barbara Terrelonge, Diana Witkowski,

         15  Cynthia Hill and John Rainbow. I think, Barbara,

         16  would you like to start?

         17                 MS. TERRELONGE: Good morning. I am

         18  going to briefly take you through some incidents

         19  that happened in New York City that all of you

         20  should be familiar with that has concerned the

         21  citizens of New York City that you should have a

         22  very big problem with.

         23                 I am going to start with January

         24  31st, 1999, when the 911 system failed. With that

         25  failure we had one fatality in the City that we know
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          2  of that became public, but that is one we know of.

          3  Does this Council want to wait until another

          4  breakdown of our emergency system to have another

          5  fatality or many fatalities.

          6                 I am also going to bring you back to

          7  two weeks ago when we had the rain in the City and

          8  all the Transit systems failed, so that none of us

          9  could get to work. I had to walk over the Brooklyn

         10  Bridge to get into Manhattan because there was no

         11  subway transportation, bringing to the point that

         12  the Transit System at 911 is not compatible with the

         13  New York City Police Department computer. So, if you

         14  do not have two compatible systems to work this City

         15  in a situation that we just had two weeks ago, it

         16  was very, very lucky that we did not have a big

         17  disaster in this City.

         18                 Talk about a disaster, we don't know

         19  what a disaster plan is at Metrotech. They just

         20  talked to you about that they were going to make a

         21  system that we all know about, but if half the

         22  operators that work at Metrotech have not worked at

         23  One Police Plaza with the equipment, no matter what

         24  they do with their software, there is nothing that

         25  we can do as technicians with that equipment,
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          2  because we do not know how to work that system. It

          3  is a different computer system. So, they can make

          4  all of the changes in software they would like to,

          5  but if I can't operate it, then what good is it to

          6  me. I can't answer a phone there, I cannot dispatch

          7  a call to anybody to help the citizens at large.

          8                 Spanish operators. We have the

          9  largest population of Spanish-speaking citizens in

         10  this City. Our Spanish operators are not equivalent

         11  to pick up the amount of calls that are coming into

         12  911 to service that public. Spanish operators do not

         13  get a differential, they are not even asking for

         14  their differential, they are asking for a better

         15  tour, a better vacation pick.

         16                 I have not been selectively

         17  certified, meaning I was not pulled off of a list to

         18  get this job. I was told I had to speak English.

         19  Every English-speaking person in our job cannot

         20  speak Spanish, but every Spanish operator at our

         21  location can speak English. We can't be trained to

         22  do that. We can't be trained to speak Spanish, so

         23  our Spanish operators are taking on the brunt of

         24  doing Spanish and English. I don't know if you know

         25  that we got 30 different dialects of Spanish in this
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          2  City. Now, you try to go to California to talk about

          3  interpretation in New York City, our Dominican, our

          4  Puerto Rican, Ecuadorian how can someone in

          5  California, the time they try to talk about Papwa

          6  (phonetic) in New York City, that person has died.

          7                 This is our responsibility, your

          8  responsibility. We came here when this system came

          9  into being to support legislation, to support this

         10  bill. It is your responsibility and our

         11  responsibility to make sure the citizens of this

         12  City get their fair share. They are paying 35 cents

         13  for something that goes down to ten to 15 times a

         14  day. Do you know what happens when that system goes

         15  down ten to 15 times a day? Because you don't hear

         16  about it, but this is happening consistently. You

         17  can take a walk through Metrotech, you will see

         18  beautiful equipment, but we do not have modern

         19  technology.

         20                 Everybody else in this big United

         21  States is doing a CAD system. The biggest City in

         22  the world with the most calls coming in can't even

         23  get a CAD system. By the time we get CAD in 2002 --

         24  we just came back from a conference, they are

         25  already working on a new program Vester (phonetic).
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          2  So CAD will be outdated by the time we get it. So,

          3  what are we doing in New York City? Ten million

          4  calls, seven million people. Yes, the Commissioner

          5  talked about staffing, about the uniformed

          6  contingent. The have a sick rate that is two point

          7  and communication has a 12 point, but if you put

          8  27,000 police officers who have to handle 10 million

          9  calls, versus 850 911 technicians that have to

         10  handle the same amount of calls, 10 million,

         11  remember uniformed feeds off of our jobs, 10

         12  million, how do you think that adds up? They are not

         13  going to have a sick rate like we do, because in

         14  fact they out-number it 20 to one, 100 percent to

         15  one, so it is not going to look like our sick rate,

         16  because again, we take 10 million calls, they get 10

         17  million calls because we answer 10 million. And

         18  believe me, we get calls that they don't even have

         19  to go out because we have to shift through to see

         20  what they do get. So if they are at 27.8 and we are

         21  at 850, tell me what the problem is. We have a big

         22  disparity amongst how this should be handled.

         23                 So, again, Mr. Chairman, you talked

         24  about a czar or a watchdog person, there is no way

         25  since this system should be implemented, like you
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          2  said $156 million and we are running on an overrun

          3  of $50 million? Something is wrong, and it still

          4  doesn't work. Someone needs to be watching it,

          5  because right now the way it is going, we are going

          6  to be spending, 30, 40, 60, 100 million to do this

          7  job, which should not be, and we are still going to

          8  be outdated against every other city in the United

          9  States.

         10                 Thank you very much.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Could you just

         12  explain to us what meant when you said there are ten

         13  to 15 breakdowns a day?

         14                 MS. TERRELONGE: We go down. Our

         15  system goes down.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: For how long.

         17                 MS. TERRELONGE: We can go down -- I

         18  was there about three weeks ago, we went down for 45

         19  minutes. You don't hear about that. It's logged in.

         20  Every single day our system goes down, the

         21  call-takers positions go down and the radio system

         22  goes down, every single day this is happening on

         23  every single shift, ten to 15 times a day. You tell

         24  me why when we got modern, supposedly, technology,

         25  new equipment. This shouldn't be. Okay, in the
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          2  beginning, glitches, but not breakdowns every single

          3  day like we are having.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Does that mean

          5  that a caller can't get through to a person during

          6  that period of time?

          7                 MS. TERRELONGE: It can mean a lot of

          8  things.

          9                 A lot of times our headsets, calls

         10  don't come in through those headsets, you just get

         11  blank air. A lot of times what you get, if we do go

         12  down for 30 to 40 minutes, 30 minutes, we are

         13  running around on slips, and the way our system is

         14  set up at this particular time, I have to know --

         15  now, remember, I am covering all of the whole entire

         16  New York City. If I get a call from the remote part

         17  of Queens, Far Rockaway where I come from, and

         18  someone doesn't know a beach channel, then I am

         19  coming from the Bronx, I have to find out from

         20  somebody else where is this location at? What

         21  borough is that? So, I have to go to a book and I

         22  have to look through this book and I have to now

         23  scan to see now what the cross streets are. Now I

         24  got to try to figure out what Precinct it could

         25  possibly be in so I can get this person help. A
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          2  30-second job now becomes a 15 -- and God forbid I

          3  have to call EMS or FD then we are really in a

          4  problem. So, this is consistently every single day.

          5  Every day of the week. And this is something that

          6  the public is not aware of. And they are paying for

          7  a service that we rightly --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Just on that

          9  last point, when the Commissioner testified that 95

         10  percent of the calls are answered in 30 seconds or

         11  less.

         12                 MS. TERRELONGE: That is inaccurate.

         13  That is inaccurate.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: That is not

         15  consistent with your experience?

         16                 MS. TERRELONGE: No, it is not at all.

         17  Again, like I said, you need to come and spend time

         18  with us. You need to come and walk around. You need

         19  to really see what the real deal is, because like I

         20  said, when you are watching from upstairs and you

         21  are looking at pretty equipment, you don't see what

         22  is going on with the real technology at 911.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Why don't we

         24  take the other testimony and then we will come back

         25  and ask questions of all of you.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 MR. SAUNDERS: Ms. Hill, could you

          4  identify yourself, please.

          5                 MS. HILL: My name is Cynthia Hill. I

          6  have been with 911 for 15 years. I am a supervisor

          7  there. As Barbara stated, and we all stated, there

          8  are things that you really don't know what is going

          9  on.

         10                 I am going to touch on one thing, the

         11  cellular calls. We get calls, and I don't know if

         12  you are aware, we get calls, cellular calls from

         13  people all over New York City and upstate. Okay, if

         14  a person is in Rockland County and he calls 911,

         15  they would in fact get a New York City 911 operator.

         16  Those calls are handled by the supervisor, that call

         17  comes into the operator, that operator takes the

         18  information, and it could be a person being beaten,

         19  that call comes into the system, it is handed to a

         20  supervisor. That supervisor must go through a book,

         21  say 25 pages, to find out what county that goes to.

         22                 We may call that person and the

         23  person may say, well, it doesn't belong to this

         24  county, call so and so and so. So now a call that he

         25  says takes 30 seconds, can take me 20 minutes.
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          2                 These should be your concerns because

          3  these are people that are calling 911 and they want

          4  an immediate response. They are not getting it, it

          5  is not happening.

          6                 I implore you to come and take a walk

          7  and see what is going on.

          8                 MS. WITKOWSKI: Good afternoon,

          9  everyone. I am Diana Witkowski, I am a supervisor at

         10  911 and I work the 4 to 12 shift.  We iterated very

         11  important issues here about what the Department

         12  claims is accurate information that they are giving

         13  you.

         14                 The average 911 call-taker is

         15  expected to answer a call in 110 seconds, that is

         16  the mandate set by the Department and the

         17  communications section. In reality, in order to

         18  process the call, the caller is on the line with a

         19  person who is frantic and screaming and yelling they

         20  don't know where they are, they don't know what

         21  street that they are on, could take an average of

         22  three minutes just trying to get the information

         23  out, notifying EMS, notifying the Fire Department.

         24                 In regards to the Spanish calls that

         25  come into New York City, we have maybe on the 4 to
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          2  12 five Spanish operators, who not only are doing

          3  Spanish calls, but 90 percent of the calls they are

          4  taking are in English. All of the calls that come in

          5  through Spanish are referred to California. An

          6  average 911 call translated through a California

          7  translator takes no less than seven minutes, no

          8  less. And as supervisors we have to monitor the

          9  calls. We have a computer system that shows us how

         10  long the operator is on the call, and they will show

         11  if they are an interpreter, if they are on with EMS,

         12  when we watch those calls and we see the light for

         13  15 minutes, 18 minutes, and it says interpreter,

         14  what does that tell you?

         15                 People out in California don't know

         16  our procedures that we need to get information, and

         17  every time we call, we have to tell the person out

         18  in California we need their address, the most

         19  important thing we need is their address, and we

         20  need to know what the emergency is. Okay, somebody

         21  could die within that time.

         22                 It is very important, if the Spanish

         23  community is so large in this City that we have a

         24  sufficient number of Spanish interpreters working at

         25  911, over the years they used to strictly do Spanish
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          2  interpretation and now they are assigned Spanish and

          3  they are not doing it.

          4                 On the late tour there are no Spanish

          5  operators to take Spanish calls. They are there but

          6  that is not their job function.

          7                 We talk about staffing levels. If you

          8  have all gotten figures the Department has given out

          9  about our staffing levels, what the Department

         10  expects on each tour. They are based on a number of

         11  calls that come into each particular tour. They are

         12  listed as what is high volume call periods,

         13  weekends, holidays, the Department has guidelines

         14  saying that for New Years we are going to expect X

         15  amount of calls over the norm, 4th of July. In the

         16  meantime, when I was hired in 1980, we had continual

         17  hiring of no less than 25 people in a class,

         18  back-to-back month after month after month. For the

         19  last several years, a class comes in in October,

         20  maybe 15 people. Maybe a class in February to get

         21  ready for the summer, maybe 25. What they don't tell

         22  you is out of that group, before they even finish

         23  the training, they are leaving, okay? It is a very

         24  tough job to learn.

         25                 The stress that is put on them to be
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          2  efficient is very great. What they learn in class is

          3  not necessarily what happens on the floor and what

          4  they need to know.

          5                 They are showing these figures, we

          6  need 67 people to man the phones. An average

          7  call-taker on a very busy tour can handle 200 or

          8  more calls in a seven-hour shift. Two-hundred calls

          9  of people screaming, yelling, we are trying to

         10  disseminate the information, we are trying to

         11  process the call, we have the hot line to the

         12  dispatch is the priorities. The dispatchers, yes the

         13  Police Department opened up 18 new divisions this

         14  summer to spread the workload around, make a quicker

         15  response, less work to the dispatcher, but in

         16  reality, that dispatcher, if he is working the 75

         17  Precinct can be handling 25 calls on a screen that

         18  have to be dispatched immediately, holding 75 calls,

         19  priorities, they have to choose and decide which job

         20  gets handled the quickest.

         21                 A police officer responds and handles

         22  one job at a time, and believe me, we sit there and

         23  watch them, you know, respond to a job, 35, 45, an

         24  hour. That dispatcher has to make quick decisions,

         25  those decisions are mandatory, and if he makes the
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          2  wrong decision, somebody is going to be on his back.

          3                 Supervisors. We have a supervisory

          4  staff, we opened up new divisions. Four years ago

          5  when we were still over at One PP we had four

          6  supervisors assigned to the Borough of Brooklyn,

          7  three or four assigned to Queens, three or four to

          8  the Bronx. Today Brooklyn has one supervisor for

          9  Brooklyn North, one supervisor for Brooklyn South,

         10  has four new divisions in Queens and still has one

         11  supervisor.

         12                 Manhattan has four new divisions,

         13  still has one supervisor. Okay, our supervisory

         14  staff is being depleted. We are supervising more

         15  people, we have to monitor more personnel, we have

         16  to monitor the equipment, we have to make reports.

         17  If we are working out on the work floor for 911,

         18  there are times there are only four supervisors

         19  available to work the 911 ACD call-takers position.

         20  That is an approximate 35 people that one supervisor

         21  may be supervising. Not only supervising, but,

         22  again, like Ms. Hill stated, dealing with the

         23  cellular calls that are not only coming from

         24  Upstate, but from New Jersey and Pennsylvania, and

         25  sometimes Connecticut. And we have to relay all of
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          2  that information to these agencies, which takes away

          3  from our time of ensuring the quality control at

          4  911.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Sir. Mr. Rainbow

          6  is it?

          7                 MR. RAINBOW: Yes.

          8                 Honorable Leffler, members, Council

          9  Members of New York City, ladies and gentlemen, my

         10  name is John Rainbow. I am a PCT, Police

         11  Communications Technician, and have been for 14

         12  years, and it isn't by coincidence, by providence

         13  that I am last here, and what I am about to share

         14  with you, gentlemen, will give you an inkling of why

         15  there is such a disparity between what you have

         16  heard previously and what the real deal is.

         17                 I have maintained for some time, as

         18  far as going to the EEO at the One Police Plaza, and

         19  also the EEO federally, about the Police Department,

         20  with the 911, maintained this plantation mentality.

         21  I used that under my flyers in 1993 and I was called

         22  up at my home and said, Mr. Rainbow, you cannot use

         23  that, I said abolish plantation mentality on my

         24  flyer, they said you cannot use that and they took

         25  the black marker and blacked it all out. And so I
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          2  couldn't present my flyers there. So I, John

          3  Rainbow, as I am, I said no, you can't do that to

          4  me, you are violating my First Amendment Rights, so

          5  I went to the legal department and I had that

          6  overturned, I have the card right here. Inspector

          7  John. P. Burns was contacted by DC 37 Legal

          8  Department and he came out and he said I could hand

          9  my leaflets outside in the yard in One Police Plaza

         10  but I couldn't bring them inside. So, I was outside

         11  handing them out in the yard one day and it has the

         12  date on here, Tuesday, December 7th, 1993 at 16:12

         13  hours, that is twelve minutes after 4:00 p.m. And he

         14  took care of that and said, Mr. Rainbow, you now can

         15  distribute the leaflets. I said, sir, can I have

         16  that in writing? He said, no. He said, here is my

         17  card, if you have any problems, tell them to call

         18  me.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: We have another

         20  meeting in this room at 1:00, so if you could give

         21  us the essence of the problems with the system? We

         22  have other people waiting to testify.

         23                 MR. RAINBOW: Oh, all right. Here is

         24  what now -- thank you, sir, for telling me that.

         25                 So, I have six letters that I have
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          2  submitted to the Commissioner and the Commanding

          3  Officers, the first one dates back to 1997, and most

          4  recent is 1999, January. Out of these six I have

          5  received two answers and that is all part of the

          6  plantation mentality. They completely ignore it. If

          7  you want to do something there, they completely

          8  ignore you. And that is why you get one idea what is

          9  done and the mentality, it is a plantation

         10  mentality. They work you 16 hours a day. Who else

         11  does that? Whom else does that? I don't know of

         12  anybody that works 16, and they are required to do

         13  it, and being how I have done research in EEO and

         14  all of that, they hide behind paramilitary. They can

         15  do Carte Blanche, and they say, well, we are

         16  paramilitary.

         17                 Well, I happen to be a World War 2

         18  veteran, gentlemen and ladies, and I have served

         19  under General MacArthur, do they know what happened

         20  to him in the end, being paramilitary? For you young

         21  ones who don't know it, he was fired. You can't be

         22  that big and that pompous, and that is what they

         23  are, ladies and gentlemen, and they ignore you, they

         24  ignored me.

         25                 Here is my letters, I talked about
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          2  what is going on with different things facing the

          3  supervisory capacity for 911 and they ignored it,

          4  they said you can't do anything about it. I think

          5  you are rushing me --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: We will try to

          7  work with you on this. We have supplemented the

          8  budget in the current year.

          9                 MR. RAINBOW: All right.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER:  I hope you have

         11  noticed some changes. Have you noticed any

         12  improvements in the --

         13                 MR. RAINBOW: No, sir. Sir, that is

         14  why I am here today.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: I am just asking

         16  honestly.

         17                 MR. RAINBOW: Don't move the mic on

         18  me. Do not move the mic.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: The testimony,

         20  if you remember, that there was hiring of most of

         21  the 63 people and the rest are coming on now in

         22  September, so you are saying you don't see it

         23  reducing overtime?

         24                 MR. RAINBOW: See, it isn't the

         25  hiring, it is what happens after the hiring. My
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          2  point being, sir --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Does it reduce

          4  your overtime? It has not reduced the overtime

          5  needs?

          6                 MR. RAINBOW: Please do not -- it

          7  would be remiss of me, ladies and gentlemen, if I

          8  did not make it clear what I am saying, it is not

          9  about hiring 2,000 people, all I am saying, it is

         10  the demeanor that we are treated on by management.

         11  And I brought this up to EEO in One Police Plaza.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Well, hopefully

         13  if there were more employees, there would be less

         14  need for this overtime and this forced work.

         15                 Let me just say --

         16                 MR. RAINBOW: My point is, they could

         17  care less if you worked 16 hours. That is my point,

         18  sir.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Well, I think

         20  they should care because that is one of the reasons

         21  why we are losing people continually. You train

         22  people, you don't want to lose them.

         23                 Let me just say --

         24                 MR. RAINBOW: Go ahead, please.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: I wish more
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          2  people in the City could hear the testimony that we

          3  heard because I think it brings home to people the

          4  difficulty and the skill that a lot of employees put

          5  out under really stressful conditions. I think you

          6  have --

          7                 MR. RAINBOW: Very stressful.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Yes, in life and

          9  death. A lot hinges on all of these quick decisions

         10  that you have to make, and so it is very important

         11  that we try to strengthen the system and we are

         12  expecting to get from the Department their analysis

         13  as to the staffing needs, we will go over it with

         14  you. If you have a submission on that, I would

         15  welcome it.

         16                 Other members have questions

         17  specifically.

         18                 Council Member Watkins.

         19                 MR. RAINBOW: Just one in closing,

         20  sir. We have a big thing about CPR, Courtesy,

         21  Professionalism and Respect, all of these words are

         22  contained in my letters suggesting that they

         23  practice what they preach, along with civility, and

         24  it has been ignored.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: I have often
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          2  felt that myself, and I am glad that you said it.

          3                 MR. RAINBOW: Thank you very much,

          4  ladies and gentlemen.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: Thank you,

          6  Mr. Chairman.

          7                 Mr. Rainbow, it might be helpful to

          8  us if we could get copies of the letters, if you

          9  give them to the Sergeants, we will get them copied

         10  because that will give us specifics of the

         11  complaints that you wrote your letters about.

         12                 I would be interested to know, if you

         13  know, Mr. Saunders, what percentage of the 911 staff

         14  are female?

         15                 MR. SAUNDERS: Ninety percent. It is

         16  overwhelming. It has to be in the 90 percent range.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: Well, I mean

         18  I suspect that but we need it for the record.

         19                 MS. WITKOWSKI: It is about 90

         20  percent.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: What

         22  percentage of the staff are people of color?

         23                 MS. WITKOWSKI: About 85 percent, 90

         24  percent. It's a lot.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: I raise the
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          2  issue because that may be part of what you refer to,

          3  there has historically been a big disparity between

          4  the way doctors in general are treated and nurses,

          5  no matter what the level of nursing, because, again,

          6  still the majority of doctors are male, the majority

          7  of nurses are female. It shouldn't be so, but one of

          8  the things that I think is necessary to force the

          9  City to look at when it is negotiating is to take a

         10  look at the people, take a look at the gender, the

         11  ethnicity, racial make-up of the staff that they are

         12  dealing with.

         13                 It is appalling to sit and listen to

         14  some of these things, but I would think that it is

         15  an eye-opener for us. I want to ask the question

         16  about this bilingual situation. You said, someone

         17  said that at one time, Spanish-speaking staff was

         18  hired specifically to handle Spanish speakers, but

         19  that is not the case now.

         20                 MS. WITKOWSKI: The case right at the

         21  moment is that a Spanish-speaking operator, they are

         22  hired, but they will do Spanish and they will do

         23  English. If the situation occurs that you say we

         24  have a disaster, the World Trade bombing was a

         25  disaster, there were people that were designated
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          2  that speak Spanish. Those speakers were supposed to

          3  be in place to speak Spanish. But if there is a

          4  disaster, or any kind of thing that would cause 911

          5  to get a specific amount of calls, those operators

          6  would be taken out of Spanish and they would answer

          7  English calls.

          8                 When a Spanish person calls, they

          9  would be sent now to an interpreter, and as she told

         10  you, we are not talking 30 seconds, we are talking

         11  seven minutes.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: The

         13  interpreter, as it stands right now, is in

         14  California.

         15                 MS. WITKOWSKI: Exactly.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: And I want to

         17  understand this, the interpreters that you are using

         18  are not trained in your --

         19                 MS. WITKOWSKI: We walk them through

         20  it, what we do is the operator stays on the line,

         21  the operator listens and this interpreter will ask

         22  the questions that the operator tells the

         23  interpreter.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: Let me move

         25  on quickly to where I am headed with the next
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          2  question.

          3                 Is there any specific reason why

          4  there is not live, in the body, in place,

          5  Spanish-speaking interpreters here who could be in

          6  the room so that if you need someone to help you

          7  interpret, why are we going to California? We have

          8  got loads of people here.

          9                 MS. WITKOWSKI: She is an interpreter.

         10                 MS. VOLIAS: My name is Celeste

         11  Volias, PCT, I have been in NYPD for four years. For

         12  three and a half years --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Talk into the

         14  microphone, please.

         15                 MS. VOLIAS: For three and a half

         16  years I have been doing Spanish. I volunteer like

         17  all of us in there and they gave us some incentive,

         18  like special tours, breaks, you know, things like

         19  that to do Spanish. And they told us any time we

         20  wanted to get out of Spanish we could. After awhile

         21  we got tired. I work for two people, I do English

         22  and Spanish. I was hired to do English. I got into

         23  Spanish to help the Latinos, to help my community,

         24  because I am Latino and my first language is

         25  Spanish, my second language is English. So I said I
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          2  could help my community by doing both. We get abused

          3  there. They told us we could not get out of Spanish

          4  because they would suspend us or terminate us. That

          5  they could use us for anything they wanted, because

          6  we utilize our skills.

          7                 But yet, they are spending half a

          8  million dollars, just in Spanish, for an

          9  interpreter. When you have about 30 of us that speak

         10  Spanish and are willing to do it. But like Ms. Hill

         11  said, when we are busy, they would take us out of

         12  Spanish. They don't care about the Latino, to do

         13  English.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: Well, it

         15  seems to me, and I don't know the intricacies of the

         16  specific lines and the titles and certainly not your

         17  negotiations, Mr. Saunders, but it seems to me that

         18  life-saving and cost effective would be a special

         19  job title which is interpreter. Intrepreter.

         20  Certainly in Spanish, and you may need in Haitian,

         21  Creole may need something else, but it seems to me

         22  that we ought to be looking at that. And having

         23  served as a Civil Service Commissioner, I have some

         24  ideas of what you may have to go through to get it.

         25                 MS. WITKOWSKI: Can I just make a
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          2  comment?

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: But I cannot

          4  see that it is saving us any money and it certainly

          5  is not saving us any lives to go through a telephone

          6  book up to California and we have a lot of people

          7  here who are bilingual and who could be on site in

          8  order to help deal with this problem.

          9                 I don't understand why we are not

         10  doing that, and maybe you better talk to us to find

         11  out how we get from here to doing that.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Okay. At 1:00

         13  here in the Committee room the Contracts Committee

         14  is meeting. Out in the Chambers the Health Committee

         15  is meeting, could we please have short questions,

         16  short answers. We have at least two people who still

         17  are here to testify, and it is only fair since they

         18  have been here at 10:00.

         19                 Councilman Reed.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Thank you, Mr.

         21  Chair, and those people who have come to testify, I

         22  appreciate it.

         23                 Mr. Saunders, how much are the people

         24  working at 911 paid? Is there a base salary, is it

         25  an hourly?

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            138

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2                 MR. SAUNDERS: As you know there are

          3  steps and things of that nature, but on average it

          4  is about $25,000 a year.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: What is the low

          6  end and the high end.

          7                 MR. SAUNDERS: Twenty-five up to 33.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: You can start at

          9  25 and you can go to 33.

         10                 Is there any arbitrariness, that is a

         11  neutral word, in the sense of if -- let me try to

         12  ask this question the way you can understand it.

         13                 If you volunteer for overtime, is it

         14  overtime for automatically eight hours, or is it

         15  ever like work for two, work for four?

         16                 In other words, if you are short, and

         17  the supervisor comes and says can you work overtime,

         18  does it mean you automatically have to do a full

         19  eight? Is there ever any opportunity to do less than

         20  eight?

         21                 MS. WITKOWSKI: When we started the

         22  mandatory overtime, no, there was nothing less than

         23  eight that you could do.

         24                 At this particular time, because our

         25  summer months are our heaviest volume, as we get
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          2  into the winter months then that decreases. So we

          3  are now, we are still -- you have to look at the

          4  tours, because you went into the tours, midnight to

          5  8:00 is where we are having the difficulty. The

          6  midnight to 8:00 is where we do not have the bodies

          7  to handle the amount of calls coming in. We are

          8  turning out a roll call with either five people on

          9  that roll call, to 12 people on that roll call.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: How many are you

         11  supposed to have on a roll call?

         12                 MS. WITKOWSKI: We should be up to 60,

         13  70 people, we are down to 12.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: On a shift you

         15  are supposed to have 60 and only 12 will show up?

         16                 MS. WITKOWSKI: Not show up. This is

         17  what is assigned because we do not have the bodies

         18  to work it. This is what is our actual roster. The

         19  amount of people designated to work. Not about

         20  people going sick, not about people having

         21  emergencies --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: That is what I

         23  meant.

         24                 MS. WITKOWSKI: No.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Designation is
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          2  there should be 60 slots full?

          3                 MS. WITKOWSKI: There at least should

          4  be 60 bodies there and we don't have the bodies

          5  because we do not have the staffing.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Typically you

          7  only have 12 so that whatever the balance is, 48,

          8  you need to get out of overtime?

          9                 MS. TERRELONGE: That is correct.

         10  Every single day.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: So my question

         12  was, then do you always have to do eight, or do they

         13  offer you --

         14                 MS. TERRELONGE: Eight.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: You never get to

         16  do four, and then they will bring them in from some

         17  place else?

         18                 MS. TERRELONGE: Not on the midnight

         19  tour, no.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: On any of the

         21  other tours?

         22                 MS. TERRELONGE: On the day tour, we

         23  can possibly go to 10:00, 9:00. But on a midnight

         24  tour, 4:00 to 12:00 tour, it is mandatory a

         25  eight-hour shift.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: I have one other

          3  question.

          4                 Where we were discussing this issue

          5  of the languages and the number of dialects,

          6  whatever, and AT&T is brought in to do this

          7  interpretation, how -- I hope I am not making any

          8  comment that people would find insensitive, but we

          9  are trying to get some facts here.

         10                 People call, they are excited on the

         11  telephone. If you only speak English, how would you

         12  know what language sometimes people are speaking or

         13  dialects? I mean, to be honest with you, I don't

         14  know if they are speaking Korean, Chinese, Japanese

         15  or, you know, we have a whole bunch; how does that

         16  get determined?

         17                 MS. TERRELONGE: Well, one of the

         18  things about being a 911 technician is that you

         19  learn how to listen very well. So you can pick up

         20  basically where, if you are -- sometimes you can't,

         21  because Vietnamese and Korean, they can sound a lot

         22  alike, so what you are going to do is you are going

         23  to press off to the language line, now in terms of

         24  the Spanish operators or technicians, you can note

         25  that it is Spanish, but it can be different
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          2  dialects.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: I understand. I

          4  am not even trying to get to that subtlety I am just

          5  trying to understand the real language difference.

          6                 MS. TERRELONGE: Yes, sometimes we

          7  cannot hear the difference.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: So when you

          9  press off to the language line, it is done up to the

         10  interpreter to figure out which one the person is

         11  speaking in, and therefore get that person

         12  connected?

         13                 MS. TERRELONGE: Yes.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: I see. I do know

         15  that we have a shortness of time, so Mr. Chair, I

         16  will yield. But I certainly think this is something

         17  that we can't just dispense with in ten minute. We

         18  have got some real issues we need to try to address.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: I think there

         20  are real issues, and, you know, it is something that

         21  we are going to have to look at and perhaps, you

         22  know, add more resources. Some of what you say is

         23  really hard to believe, you are under such a

         24  shortfall, I mean to be down 80 percent is striking,

         25  to such an important service particularly.
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          2                 Council Member Robles.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Well, I guess

          4  my trouble is I may be a lame duck but I am not a

          5  dead duck. This issue about language interpreters is

          6  not new. For 15 years I have been on this Committee,

          7  with all due respect, and I have raised it

          8  consistently, my problem is we can't say one thing

          9  and not follow through.

         10                 So, let me perhaps set the record

         11  straight, and let me ask some questions of Mr.

         12  Saunders.

         13                 This has nothing to do with you, sir,

         14  since you have come aboard, I believe DC 37 has gone

         15  back to the track which you are supposed to be and

         16  that is leadership. So, let me perhaps understand,

         17  that if you want our help, it is called

         18  communications. Because honestly I am getting tired

         19  that when there is a crisis or something happens,

         20  that is when we all come together, and all of a

         21  sudden, oh, we are so baffled, and some of us have

         22  been around here long enough that these issues are

         23  not new.

         24                 But let me ask you some questions.

         25  One, I guess the union is aware, while I am not
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          2  looking numbers and how many we have hired, because

          3  I understand that, but in the numbers you also are

          4  concerned with evaluating, that whatever the numbers

          5  are, that those numbers are addressing the greatest

          6  need, where the greatest need is to be.

          7                 So, for example, if the 4:00 to 12:00

          8  shift is where you have the largest number of

          9  probable multilingual people calling at a shift,

         10  question: How do we determine that those who are

         11  working at the 911 is meeting the demand?

         12                 So, if the number is 12 or 60, are

         13  there enough Spanish-speaking -- excuse me. I am

         14  trying to make a point. And that is why we need to

         15  work together, because some of us will hold the fire

         16  against the Police Department, comes budget time,

         17  comes all of this other nonsense, but if we don't

         18  know who got hired after we do something, and we

         19  don't know that we address the language problem,

         20  then this issue will come up every single year, and

         21  maybe I will be out of the damn Council and we will

         22  still be discussing the same thing.

         23                 All I am asking is, is there a way

         24  that we, you can help us also that after we pass the

         25  budget, and you lobby us aggressively in budget
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          2  time, and you set the tone, are we going to make

          3  this a priority comes budget time?

          4                 So, for example, November is budget

          5  mods around here, and the Police Department, every

          6  time the President comes in, the Pope comes in, I

          7  mean we have to find $20 million to put into the

          8  Police Department for all of this overtime. Is this

          9  going to be a priority where we start addressing it

         10  here in the City Council? And if you have those kind

         11  of information, would you please share it with us?

         12  Number one.

         13                 Let's go to the health issue.

         14                 MR. SAUNDERS: Can I respond to that?

         15  Can I respond to that? Make no mistake about it,

         16  this is a major priority for this Council. It is a

         17  major priority, it is a major priority not only to

         18  this Council, but the members who provide these

         19  essential services, it should be a priority for

         20  those individuals to depend upon the services and

         21  the citizens of New York. So, it is a priority and

         22  we are willing to sit down with you and meet with

         23  you at any time.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: All I want you

         25  to do is provide us the data that shows the
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          2  breakdown, who is the bodies around those phones.

          3  You know more than I do because you are there every

          4  single day. Where is the peak hours where we need to

          5  start really putting fire under the Police

          6  Department, and I assure you there is enough of us

          7  here that will help you become a priority and you

          8  will see this change, number one.

          9                 Number two, let's go to the health

         10  issue.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Victor --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: I understand,

         13  but you are not going to throw something out here

         14  and then, oh, it's outrageous, but we are going to

         15  get to it. We are going to get to it.

         16                 Health issue. Mr. Saunders, as the

         17  union, you heard the Police Commissioner say, or

         18  gave the impression that all of a sudden maybe you

         19  are partying at nighttime and that is why you are

         20  not coming into work in the morning. But do you have

         21  a way of knowing when one of your members goes sick?

         22  That is really attributed to the conditions they are

         23  working under.

         24                 So, if it is stress, mental, you name

         25  it, do you have a mechanism so that we will know,
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          2  and I as the Chairman of the Health Committee, I am

          3  ready to address it when you want me to address it,

          4  in terms of the health issue, do you have that

          5  means?

          6                 MR. SAUNDERS: I think the best means

          7  is to communicate one on one with the people that

          8  are forced to take sick leave, based upon the

          9  specific problems that exist, and we can give you

         10  horror stories about what is going on now.

         11                 MS. HILL: Can I also answer that? We

         12  have been at Metrotech for three years, okay? I am

         13  on the job for 19 years, I have never seen so many

         14  EMS vehicles parked in front of 11 Metrotech, okay?

         15                 The Department is well aware of the

         16  stress level, they deny it, they claim they don't

         17  know, but they have it logged.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: But the

         19  problem with the Department is that we have learned

         20  in this Committee that they will give you what they

         21  want to give you and they will keep what they want.

         22  And I am saying what we need to do is begin to share

         23  with each other, even though it is allegations, even

         24  know it is hearsay, we need to be able to say,

         25  excuse me, Commissioner, this is what I am being
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          2  told, you show me I am wrong. And that is why I am

          3  urging, and I am ready to take it out of the Public

          4  Safety Committee and bring it into the Health

          5  Committee to deal with it as a health issue.

          6                 MR. SAUNDERS: We will do that.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Okay?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Council Member

          9  Tracy Boyland.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Thank you. I

         11  will be brief.

         12                 There was a mention, there was

         13  something mentioned about the present system and

         14  something called the tier system of the Vester

         15  System, can you elaborate a little bit on that?

         16                 MS. TERRELONGE: Okay, once a year we

         17  go to a conference called the Apical (phonetic)

         18  Conference where all of the 911s in the United

         19  States and abroad get together and we try to bring

         20  in the most modern technology to find out what is

         21  going on in different states. We just returned back

         22  in August from a conference such as that and CAD has

         23  been around for many, many years, this is not a new

         24  animal, computer-aided dispatch. We are still

         25  dealing with in 911 right now new equipment with
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          2  old, archaic technology, the sprint system.

          3                 Right now in the rest of the part of

          4  the world, they are doing Vester, which is an even

          5  improved version of the CAD system. So while we play

          6  catch-up to CAD, everybody else in this universe is

          7  going for the Vester.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Has there

          9  been some introduction to City government in terms

         10  of updating? We are going into the new millennium

         11  now and we are worried about 999 and the Year 2000,

         12  it might be helpful if you bring that information to

         13  the Council, as well as to the government, in terms

         14  of introducing it so we don't have the failures that

         15  we are having, that the January failure and the

         16  September failure we are having, I mean, the

         17  information will only help us grow at this

         18  particular moment.

         19                 MS. WITKOWSKI: Ms. Boyland, can I say

         20  something to you?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Yes.

         22                 MS. WITKOWSKI: The transit dispatcher

         23  here, they had CAD system before we merged with

         24  them. They cannot use the CAD system because it is

         25  not compatible with our system, so they in fact did
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          2  have a CAD system, and now they can't even use it.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Thank you.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: So it is not

          5  accepted, it is not compatible with what we have at

          6  this particular moment?

          7                 MS. WITKOWSKI: Right, because ours is

          8  outdated and theirs is more --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: So there

         10  needs to be an overhaul?

         11                 MS. WITKOWSKI: Yes.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Okay, thank

         13  you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Thank you,

         15  Council Member Boyland.

         16                 Councilman Stanley Michels.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Yes, thank

         18  you, Mr. Chairman.

         19                 You know, I sat here, I have been

         20  sitting here listening to your testimony, I have

         21  listened to the police testimony, and he says

         22  everything is fine, you have enough personnel. Mr.

         23  Chairman, there is such a contradiction, such a

         24  factual divergence here, as to what you say and what

         25  he says, and I don't want it to be merely dismissed
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          2  as a labor dispute between the union and the

          3  Administration, because the things that are involved

          4  here vitally affect, whoever is right, vitally

          5  affect the health and welfare of the citizenry of

          6  this City.

          7                 So, I don't know whether or not they

          8  have answered or you have documented all of the

          9  stories that we are hearing today, and whether or

         10  not they have had an opportunity to respond, so I am

         11  suggesting, and I would assume you would like to go

         12  along with it, that all of these, and there are many

         13  more, because I am sure you have representatives

         14  here, representatives of the situation here you are

         15  presenting to us, that whether or not these have

         16  actually been documented, and I think, Mr. Chairman,

         17  may I humbly suggest that these documented

         18  situations, events be presented to the Police

         19  Commissioner and ask him to respond to each and

         20  every one of them, so that we can really somehow get

         21  in the situation what is factual and what isn't

         22  factual, and what their positions are.

         23                 I mean, we have such a diversion of

         24  facts here that we can't decide. You are saying one

         25  thing, he is saying another thing. I don't know
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          2  where we are here. I would like to believe both of

          3  you if I could.

          4                 MR. SAUNDERS: I don't think you can.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I don't think

          6  I can either.

          7                 If we are put in a position of the

          8  trier of the facts --

          9                 MR. SAUNDERS: We will provide as much

         10  documentation as we possibly can, and as I said, I

         11  urge you to come out as I did, and come out to the

         12  site and sit down and talk to those members.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Thank you.

         14                 Councilman Golden.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Can I have a

         16  response from the chair as to my suggestions?

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Yes, I think it

         18  is a good suggestion. We will send it to the

         19  Department and seek a response back on all of the

         20  matters that have been raised.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: First we have

         22  got to get the documentation from the union.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Well taken.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Councilman
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          2  Golden.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: Thank you, Mr.

          4  Chairman.

          5                 Good afternoon. I just want a little

          6  help, clarification on 110 seconds. The average

          7  allotted to the technician is 110 seconds?

          8                 MS. WITKOWSKI: Right. That is the

          9  protocol that is set by the Department

         10  Communications Section as to what they expect for

         11  the call-taker to handle a call. And that is getting

         12  all of the information and processing a call. The

         13  reality is an average call-taker, if they are very

         14  proficient will do it in 135 seconds, maybe somebody

         15  will do it in 67 seconds, okay? But the majority of

         16  our personnel on the phones are new, they are less

         17  than five years. It takes a good year to learn the

         18  whole operation and learn how to do the job quicker

         19  and whatnot. The average call can take two to three

         20  minutes just trying to get the basic information

         21  that is needed. It is not just taking the call and

         22  getting the information, but we work as

         23  psychologists on the phone, you know, we have got to

         24  calm people down, we have got to pull and beg to get

         25  the information and then make notifications to EMS,
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          2  the Fire Department and wherever else we have to

          3  make notifications.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Thank you.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: And I just

          6  want to clarify, over here the number of employees

          7  on a 12 to 8 Citywide are 12 employees, or they hold

          8  the 4 to 12 to pick up the numbers? They hold the 4

          9  to 12, so you actually have 12 assigned and to make

         10  up that 67 number you hold the people from the 4 to

         11  12 to make that up; is that it?

         12                 MS. WITKOWSKI: Exactly. The overtime

         13  is not compensated --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Thank you very

         15  much.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: And the last

         17  question, I agree here with Council Member Michels

         18  is that it seems to be a union management problem

         19  here, and especially when it comes to I guess the

         20  Spanish-speaking, there seems to be some problems

         21  with management and with the union and I think you

         22  should come to resolve that. I think that seems to

         23  be a problem, I think it is telling tale here that

         24  it is a serious problem.

         25                 I am hoping that the union and the
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          2  management can come to terms on that issue, and

          3  maybe the Council Member to my left here, Watkins,

          4  stated maybe the redefinition of interpreter or

          5  whatever may have to be a new job line or something

          6  along those lines, but I think we should face the

          7  issue and I think we should work closer to correct

          8  that.

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Thank you all.

         11  We will follow up.

         12                 We have three more witnesses, could

         13  you please come up as a panel. You are all involved

         14  in the operation of the system, two labor leaders.

         15  David Rosenzweig, II, from the Fire Dispatchers,

         16  Arthur Cheliotes, Communications Workers, and is

         17  there a Michael Darden here? Is there a Mr. Michael

         18  Darden? Okay, two labor leaders will conclude.

         19                 Who wishes to go first? Mr.

         20  Rosenzweig.

         21                 Can we please have quiet so we can

         22  try to conclude this meeting before the next one

         23  comes at 1:00?

         24                 Mr. Rosenzweig.

         25                 MR. ROSENZWEIG: Good afternoon, Mr.
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          2  Leffler, members of the Committee. I will be quick.

          3                 While the material is being passed

          4  out, just to let you know, on any one particular

          5  moment I was prepared to be sworn in as a witness

          6  any time I appear before this Council.

          7                 I have asked for this Committee

          8  particularly to swear in their witnesses, and

          9  historically we haven't. I would love to see

         10  Commissioner Safir sworn in, because if anything, he

         11  does nothing but spew false statistics on a

         12  consistent regular basis, okay? He misleads the

         13  Council, and it should be eliminated, it should be

         14  eradicated, okay? As simple as that.

         15                 Now, I am not even going to read my

         16  testimony because I know that you are pressured for

         17  time, but it is really quite simple.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: We will

         19  incorporate it in the record if you want to hit a

         20  couple of highlights.

         21                 MR. ROSENZWEIG: Yes, I am. If you

         22  don't mind.

         23                 I represent the largest users of the

         24  911 system. We call 911, the Fire Alarm Dispatchers

         25  call 911 more than any other group in New York City.
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          2  The only way that we can communicate with the

          3  police. We have no direct lines. We have no special

          4  communications, we dial 911. The fact of the matter

          5  is, is that a majority of the time we consistently

          6  get recordings. The recordings are telling us to

          7  please hold on. That is the same recordings that

          8  people are reporting fires, people that are

          9  reporting cardiac arrests, medical emergencies, and

         10  the same recording that people are recording police

         11  emergencies get. They get a recording telling them

         12  to please hold on.

         13                 This is totally unsatisfactory. It

         14  has to be eliminated. We keep going the way we are

         15  going, we are going to end up having more fatalities

         16  than we have already had. And it is obvious we have

         17  had them. We have had a lot of fatalities you don't

         18  even know about.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: David, have

         20  you documented this?

         21                 MR. ROSENZWEIG: Documented what?

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: What you are

         23  just telling us right now?

         24                 MR. ROSENZWEIG: Sure I can document

         25  it.
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          2                 I have documented it. This is not the

          3  first time I have been here.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I know we

          5  have heard you say these things before, but is there

          6  some actual factual documentation you can give us to

          7  show the number of call times that you have called

          8  up and you have gotten these --

          9                 MR. ROSENZWEIG: The answer is I will

         10  bring you in tape records, okay?

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Good.

         12                 MR. ROSENZWEIG: Constantly. I had it

         13  when I made my testimony before, the phones ringing

         14  and ringing, six, seven times you get a recording,

         15  it doesn't even answer in three times. And then the

         16  next thing you know is you are holding on.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: And what the

         18  frequency of that is, I think that is the stuff we

         19  need. We need some hard evidence of it.

         20                 MR. ROSENZWEIG: That answer is I will

         21  try to provide you with that information.

         22                 You realize it is difficult to get

         23  because the Police Department is not going to give

         24  it --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: You realize
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          2  that what we have had here today is a completely

          3  different -- one person saying one thing and another

          4  person saying another, so we need hard evidence,

          5  something to look at, to refer to.

          6                 MR. ROSENZWEIG: Okay.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  I am not

          8  doubting you. I am just saying we just need some

          9  hard evidence.

         10                 MR. ROSENZWEIG: I know you are not

         11  doubting it. I am just telling you that since Howard

         12  Safir has arrived in New York City, information that

         13  is critical to public safety has not been

         14  forthcoming, either when he was in the Fire

         15  Department and now when he is in the Police

         16  Department.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Give us that

         18  information.

         19                 MR. ROSENZWEIG: That is the reality.

         20  That is the fact, okay? So, if we need it we will

         21  try to get it for you but it is almost impossible. I

         22  will definitely do something.

         23                 At any rate, I would like to make

         24  some noteworthy little known fact about the existing

         25  emergency communication system, other than the fact
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          2  that we get recordings all the time.

          3                 The 911 system is overburdened. And

          4  by the way, this is not a unique New York City

          5  situation, the national 911 system is overburdened,

          6  and they have tried to come up with other remedies,

          7  this 311 for non-emergency calls and all different

          8  kinds of systems which we have not implemented in

          9  New York City.

         10                 We do have available to us at 911-2

         11  system. Now, I know the Police Commissioner Safir

         12  made a ridiculous answer, okay? He would rather have

         13  people stay on the phone and listen to a recording

         14  telling them to please hold on than have then listen

         15  to a recording saying if you have a fire press 1, if

         16  you have a police emergency press 2, if you need an

         17  ambulance press 3. That is not acceptable to him. I

         18  am trying to reduce the overburdened system, I am

         19  trying to get people with emergencies funneled into

         20  the agency that will deliver the most expedient care

         21  for the people. And for some reason, we just can't

         22  seem to do that.

         23                 This is the way to solve our problem

         24  today. It is an immediate resolution, okay?

         25                 The other thing is, that I think is
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          2  even much more fundamental, is you all remember that

          3  you dialed the operator when you had an emergency,

          4  you got police, you got fire and you got EMS, it was

          5  very simple.

          6                 When we had these failures --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: An operator

          8  referred you to the --

          9                 MR. ROSENZWEIG: We had these failures

         10  of the PD or the E-911 system, okay? When the people

         11  dialed operator, you know what they got? They got

         12  the same recording, because somebody in the

         13  Administration does not want to service the citizens

         14  in the proper way. When an operator gets a call for

         15  an emergency, they should call the agency that is

         16  affected and not call 911. If they have a fire, they

         17  should call the direct dial fire line, which we

         18  have, since I have been in the job 30 some odd

         19  years. They want an ambulance, they should be

         20  calling EMS.

         21                 I am talking about when the system

         22  fails, instead of getting a recording telling you to

         23  please hold on, those calls should be transferred to

         24  the agencies so that we can get the kind of help

         25  that needs to be gotten.
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          2                 When the system fails and nobody can

          3  answer the phone, we certainly don't need them to be

          4  holding on, waiting for help, and that is basically

          5  what we have.

          6                 Now, in addition to that, everybody

          7  knows we have fire alarm boxes. Every time we have

          8  an emergency in New York City we see public

          9  announcements going on the radio, going on the TV,

         10  giving them a number that nobody is answering.

         11  Literally, the last time they published a number on

         12  the phone, nobody was answering that phone. But they

         13  won't tell them to utilize an existing public safety

         14  emergency communication system in New York City,

         15  that is the fire alarm boxes. We have voice boxes

         16  and we have regular mechanical boxes. We are the

         17  fastest processing agency in the City, 43 seconds to

         18  process a fire call, and less than that if you

         19  activate a fire alarm box. We can provide the

         20  service that is needed. If somebody calls us on a

         21  talk box and says they need the police, do you think

         22  we are going to give them a recording? We are going

         23  to get them a police officer, we are going to

         24  prioritize the work if we know the system isn't

         25  working.
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          2                 Now, all I am asking for is a level

          3  playing field and fairness. We want to provide

          4  public safety to the citizens, that is what I am

          5  here about. And we have to design a system

          6  immediately that is going to provide the citizens of

          7  New York with the public safety needs, which is you

          8  get a recording? You don't get a recording anymore,

          9  you get the operator. Instead of getting the

         10  operator you say I have a fire, I have an emergency

         11  or I need the Police Department, we get help. Thank

         12  you.

         13                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: As was

         14  announced before, we have got to vacate this room

         15  very shortly.

         16                 MR. ROSENZWEIG: I know.

         17                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you

         18  very much.

         19                 Arthur Cheliotes. Identify yourself.

         20                 MR. CHELIOTES: My testimony has been

         21  handed out.

         22                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: State

         23  your name, Arthur.

         24                 MR. CHELIOTES: My name is Arthur

         25  Cheliotes, I am President of Communications Workers
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          2  of America, Local 1187.

          3                 We represent the command civilians in

          4  911, and it is important that you understand that

          5  the staffing crisis exists at that level too. What

          6  is particularly interesting is that the Department,

          7  in light of the crisis in January, saw fit to hire

          8  captains and a deputy commissioner to bring in above

          9  us to supervise the operation, when we think that

         10  money would have been better spent hiring the

         11  necessary staff at all levels and on subordinate

         12  levels to see that the work actually gets done.

         13  Because ultimately it is we who have worked through

         14  the ranks and in the system who know best what needs

         15  to be done.

         16                 What I would like to point out is

         17  that while you hear reports as to what the staffing

         18  is, the minimum staffing for any particular tour in

         19  the Police Department, for the command people that

         20  we represent, and they are the platoon commanders,

         21  the assistant platoon commanders, two supervisors

         22  over the 911 operation and two supervisors over the

         23  radio room, is rarely met.

         24                 The chart in the back, and I am

         25  really skipping along here because I understand the
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          2  constraints of time, show what actually happened.

          3                 This chart up here, I thought it

          4  would be a little bigger, but you can follow along

          5  certainly by what I have handed out, on the last

          6  page. You will see that through June, July and

          7  August, on average we had about a 5.2 rate of

          8  coverage on any particular tour. This is the third

          9  platoon, this is the 4:00 to 12:00 tour, the busiest

         10  tour in the City.

         11                 Now, minimum manning for any tour,

         12  the lightest tour manning that exists is supposed to

         13  be seven, and we are at 5.23 as it relates to our

         14  high level supervisory staff in police

         15  communications. They never meet the target.

         16                 September starts out, and you can see

         17  down to 4.23. The point is quite clear. We need to

         18  hire enough staff to make sure that you at least

         19  meet your minimum manning. These figures didn't come

         20  out of the air, they are the Police Department's own

         21  figures as to what the minimum manning should be,

         22  and then unless that is done, what you wind up doing

         23  is having the gaps and the problems that have been

         24  talked about here today. And I am free to answer

         25  your questions, that is the main point that I want
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          2  to make.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Thank you very

          4  much.

          5                 There are actually two other people

          6  who have just given us slips within the last couple

          7  of minutes and have asked to testify.

          8                 Councilman Reed.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Sorry, Mr.

         10  Chair. I am back and forth because I am also serving

         11  in that Committee.

         12                 I just have a basic question. I don't

         13  understand, Mr. Cheliotes, who you represent? I just

         14  can't quite get it in here yet.

         15                 MR. CHELIOTES: Each platoon has a --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Platoon, what is

         17  a platoon?

         18                 MR. CHELIOTES: A platoon is an 8:00

         19  to 4:00, the 4:00 to 12:00 --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Of the 911?

         21                 MR. CHELIOTES: Of 911.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Metrotech or

         23  wherever they are talking about?

         24                 MR. CHELIOTES: Exactly.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Go ahead.
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          2                 MR. CHELIOTES: And we represent what

          3  is called the platoon commander, the chief civilian

          4  in charge of that tour of duty. The person that all

          5  civilians go to for instruction and direction as to

          6  what needs to be done.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: All civilians?

          8                 MR. CHELIOTES: Civilians. And above

          9  them now, in reacting to the crisis, they brought in

         10  captains. Why? Because the obvious plantation

         11  mentality that does exist at the Police Department,

         12  indicates that the civilians maybe can do the job,

         13  which brings uniforms back into the 911 operation.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Okay, Phil?

         15                 MR. CHELIOTES: When really what they

         16  need are civilian managers.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: We thank you for

         18  your testimony, we will read it more closely and we

         19  are trying to get in two more witnesses before the

         20  next Committee begins.

         21                 MR. CHELIOTES: Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: The two final

         23  witnesses have given up slips, Terry Paitaski, is

         24  that close to that? And a Richard McAllan.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Mr. Chairman,
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          2  I do think we are going to have to schedule another

          3  hearing on this same issue.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: I think it is

          5  quite possible. There certainly needs to be

          6  follow-up on this.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: There

          8  certainly seems to be open-ended issues here. It is

          9  too important an issue just to say we had a hearing

         10  on it.

         11                 MR. PAITAKIS: My name is Terry

         12  Paitakis. I am a Police Communications Technician.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: There has been

         14  another meeting scheduled here, the meeting of the

         15  Contracts Committee, you have just given us slips so

         16  if you can try to keep your points --

         17                 MR. PAITAKIS: Okay.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Because we do

         19  have another committee that is going to be beginning

         20  soon.

         21                 MR. PAITAKIS: Okay. There is a lot of

         22  miscommunication that really bothers me here today,

         23  because I hear of people saying things, they are

         24  using terms that you don't know what we are talking

         25  about. We really need to play on a level playing
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          2  field here and I understand what is going on, but

          3  this is an essential system for the City, 911 is

          4  something you call when you need an ambulance, a

          5  burglar is in your house, you are in an accident,

          6  your mother is having chest pains, you should not

          7  get a recording when you call 911.

          8                 And now that we have such low

          9  staffing levels, one night we had five people on the

         10  midnight tour. Five people to answer 911 calls in a

         11  City of 5 million is ridiculous.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: How about

         13  seven and a half million.

         14                 MR. PAITAKIS: Seven and a half

         15  million. I am sorry.

         16                 But we are adding all of these people

         17  on overtime, and they have to come to work the next

         18  day. That was not mentioned. You go home, you get

         19  three hours sleep, you have to come in and take more

         20  emergency calls. I mean, if you get an apartment

         21  wrong, an address wrong, that could cost someone

         22  their lives.

         23                 The place was okay, but we had

         24  wall-to-wall carpeting, it is now filthy in certain

         25  spots. This is a 24-hour operation, we deserve clean
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          2  working conditions. I mean, it looks like delibrae

          3  tarpits, (phonetic), the carpet in certain spots,

          4  you know.

          5                 The supervision is overzealous.

          6  People have called and said I have been in a car

          7  accident, I am in the hospital, their response would

          8  be when are you coming in? I mean, we need better

          9  treatment.

         10                 And it is just something, we really

         11  need more personnel. We do need more people. We

         12  added 18 radio divisions. From adding these

         13  divisions, we took away call-takers into the radio

         14  room. So that is why we do need a lot more people.

         15  And it is really an essential thing to the City. You

         16  know, if you have a heart attack, that 30 seconds

         17  could cost you your life.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Thank you. Thank

         19  you very much.

         20                 MR. PAITAKIS: Okay.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Mr. -- Is it Mr.

         22  McAllan?

         23                 MR. McALLAN: Good afternoon, ladies

         24  and gentlemen. I will also keep this brief. I am

         25  aware they are waiting in the wings.
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          2                 I am a senior paramedic for the New

          3  York City Emergency Medical Service, I am aware this

          4  isn't exactly the right Committee, but I understand

          5  you still have general oversight of public safety,

          6  so I came here today.

          7                 I handed you a flyer I previously

          8  gave to members of EMS Local 2507, and it briefly

          9  states that Starfire II is a total loss within the

         10  Fire Department, and obviously this bears on the 911

         11  system, and it is my understanding that the Fire

         12  Department is using the broken watermain which was a

         13  true occurrence at the EMS Maspeth headquarters to

         14  go off competitive bid and buy tens of millions of

         15  dollars worth of emergency contract equipment to try

         16  to move New York City EMS to Metrotech and to try to

         17  replace the computers that are a total loss under

         18  the Starfire Program.

         19                 We are housed in a trailer park, even

         20  though we have had an architect look at the original

         21  building at 5530 58 Street, and he says the building

         22  is safe, the Fire Department has refused to give us

         23  any information and instead has now told dispatchers

         24  of the 911 system EMS section and the call receiving

         25  operators, 911 EMS Section, that they will be in
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          2  those unsafe and unsanitary trailers until after the

          3  Year of 2000.

          4                 So, I came here today to request that

          5  you look into this, and that the Council investigate

          6  exactly what is going on there. It is my opinion

          7  that the original building at 5530 58th Street is

          8  completely repairable, could be repaired. What

          9  happens after that is another matter, but it could

         10  be repaired at once so our members could move back

         11  into a safe building that was restored.

         12                 The other issues over Starfire 2, I

         13  believe that the Fire Department is planning to buy

         14  EMS-type computers which are different digital

         15  equipment, VAX computers (phonetic), and are

         16  planning to run the same type of software that EMS

         17  runs on it, which has been upgraded to the Year

         18  2000. We use computer-aided dispatch system under

         19  license and public response corporation and have for

         20  many years, and I think they are trying to duplicate

         21  that, which is a wise move, but I don't think they

         22  are trying to do that in a legal fashion or in a

         23  fashion that reports to the Council that the

         24  millions of dollars they spent on Starfire 2 is a

         25  total loss.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Thank you very

          3  much.

          4                 This stuff with Starfire and Fire,

          5  there is another committee that deals with it now,

          6  as you well know, it is not my Committee anymore.

          7  There is another Committee that does meet here at

          8  1:00.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: I have a

         10  suggestion.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Yes.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: I haven't done

         13  it, but we have been dealing with this 911 and

         14  Metrotech and upgrading for years now, and I think

         15  that at some point I would like for the chair to

         16  take on a consideration that when we have another

         17  hearing like this, let's have the hearing there as

         18  opposed to here. Yes, okay?

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Why do you say

         20  that?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Because I think

         22  that in listening to the gentleman here and

         23  listening to the union rep, the Police Commissioner,

         24  and the Fire Dispatchers, you know, we hear

         25  different versions, different stories. We have
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          2  contracts in California with interpreters and we

          3  know that the Hispanic population in the City of New

          4  York has grown and I think is either number two in

          5  this whole City of New York, and to have that,

          6  whatever that contract is worth, whatever the value

          7  of the dollar of that contract, to have lines that

          8  we, when we deal with the Mayor's Management Report

          9  to move into the budget and to hear that there is

         10  100 lines that have been approved and allocated in

         11  the budget, and only 60 are filled, which leaves 40

         12  and people talking about their well being and

         13  downtime, it just doesn't fit.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: We will consider

         15  that. We will consider that the next time we get

         16  together, okay?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: All right.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Any other

         19  questions?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: And you are

         21  right, Chairperson, about the Starfire Program, but

         22  we really need to -- I would like to be educated

         23  more on this program, especially in terms of the

         24  dollar amount that you say has been allocated --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Again, this is
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          2  not -- the Starfire Program is a Fire Department

          3  program and this Committee does not deal with the

          4  Fire Department anymore. There is a new Committee --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: That is fine,

          6  Shelly, but if he is saying that at some point EMS,

          7  911, the operation, they are all, the software is

          8  all connected at one point, and one of my questions

          9  for the group of four was that, if they are using

         10  antiquated systems, in terms of the failures that

         11  are happening, and it is all tied into the same

         12  connection, that we are going to have some problems

         13  in terms of dealing with the technology of New York

         14  City in the new millennium, as well as dealing with

         15  it today.

         16                 MS. McALLAN: Ma'am, the EMS, as you

         17  know, was part of Health and Hospital until

         18  recently, and they had a separate system that ran on

         19  digital equipment computers, as opposed to the IBM

         20  computers, and they used a licensed software that is

         21  a company that is nationally known and has 911

         22  systems in other cities also operating on the same

         23  software.

         24                 So, our software has been upgraded to

         25  Windows '98 and is supposedly Y2K compliant, but it
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          2  runs on a different system than what they were

          3  trying to develop under Starfire 2, which I believe

          4  was IBM. Starfire 2 is not up, it is not going to be

          5  up in time, but the EMS system is capable at

          6  dispatching fire engines or police cars, because of

          7  course it's special software.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: They

          9  mentioned the CAD, C-A-D system --

         10                 MR. McALLAN: Computer-Aided Dispatch,

         11  that's right.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Right.

         13                 MR. McALLAN: But EMS is run on a

         14  different system, and parallel of course, but it

         15  runs on a different system, and what I came here to

         16  advise these members of the Council of, is that

         17  Starfire 2 is a total loss, as far as I understand.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Okay.

         19                 MR. McALLAN: And the Fire Department

         20  has not admitted that, and unfortunately the Council

         21  has not gotten into that and I will of course be in

         22  touch with the other Committee as well.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: We have gotten

         24  into that repeatedly.

         25                 MR. McALLAN: Oh, I know, sir, before.
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          2  Before the separation of the committees.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: No, we have had

          4  hearings on the budget, we have had hearings on the

          5  Mayor's Management Report.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Okay, he is

          7  saying we need to address it in a different

          8  committee.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Right.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: All right.

         11                 MR. McALLAN: Yes, before the

         12  separation of the Committees, but you should be

         13  advised it is part of the 911 system. These people

         14  are answering 911 calls, they are dispatching a

         15  million calls for ambulances a year, this is no

         16  small issue. The question is what is going to happen

         17  January 1st, 2000, with the fire system which is

         18  1980 equipment. The computers in the New York City

         19  Fire Department, dispatch computers are 1980

         20  equipment, there is no chance they are going to be

         21  ready for Y2K or that they can be upgraded for Y2K.

         22                 So, the key question for this City

         23  Council and for Public Safety is what are they doing

         24  about it? It is September, where are we? You know,

         25  what is going on here?
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Thank you for

          3  bringing that to our attention.

          4                 MR. McALLAN: Thank you very much.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Thank you very

          6  much.

          7                 This meeting of the Public Safety

          8  Committee is concluded. We meet again on October

          9  6th, and we are going to be taking up amendments to

         10  the legislation that we passed last year with

         11  respect to the gun protective devices, the so-called

         12  trigger locks.

         13                 Thank you very much.

         14                 (Hearing concluded at 1:22 p.m.)
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